# Collective Agreement

between

Liquor, Gaming and Cannabis Authority of Manitoba

and

Manitoba Government and General Employees' Union
Local 425 and 426

## **Table of Contents**

| Article 1  | Duration                       | 1  |
|------------|--------------------------------|----|
| Article 2  | Definitions                    | 2  |
| Article 3  | Recognition                    | 5  |
| Article 4  | Management Rights              | 6  |
| Article 5  | Union Security                 | 6  |
| Article 6  | Union Business                 | 6  |
| Article 7  | Rights of Representatives      | 8  |
| Article 8  | Committees                     | 9  |
| Article 9  | No Discrimination              | 11 |
| Article 10 | No Harassment                  | 11 |
| Article 11 | Civil Liability                | 14 |
| Article 12 | Recruitment and Promotion      | 14 |
| Article 13 | Probationary and Trial Periods | 16 |
| Article 14 | Pay                            | 17 |
| Article 15 | Merit Increase                 | 17 |
| Article 16 | Acting Status                  | 19 |
| Article 17 | Performance Appraisal          | 20 |
| Article 18 | Seniority                      | 20 |
| Article 19 | Shift Premium                  | 21 |
| Article 20 | Weekend Premium                | 22 |
| Article 21 | Statutory Holidays             | 22 |
| Article 22 | Hours of Work                  | 23 |
| Article 23 | Overtime                       | 25 |
| Article 24 | Vacation                       | 27 |
| Article 25 | Sick Leave                     | 30 |
| Article 26 | Compassionate Leave            | 33 |
| Article 27 | Maternity Leave                | 34 |

| Article 28 | Parental Leave  | 38 |
|------------|---|----|
| Article 29 | Leave for Birth/Adoption of Child                     | 39 |
| Article 30 | Family Related Leave                                  | 39 |
| Article 31 | Court Leave   | 40 |
| Article 32 | Leave of Absence                                      | 40 |
| Article 33 | Workers Compensation                                  | 40 |
| Article 34 | Employee File   | 42 |
| Article 35 | Disciplinary Action                                   | 42 |
| Article 36 | Grievance Procedure                                   | 43 |
| Article 37 | Arbitration Procedure                                 | 45 |
| Article 38 | Contracting Out                                       | 46 |
| Article 39 | Technological Change                                  | 47 |
| Article 40 | Change of Work Headquarters                           | 47 |
| Article 41 | Layoff  | 48 |
| Article 42 | Severance   | 52 |
| Article 43 | Resignations and Abandonment of Position              | 54 |
| Article 44 | Use of Privately Owned Vehicles for Employer Business | 55 |
| Article 45 | Meals and Miscellaneous Expenses                      | 55 |
| Article 46 | Travel out of Province/Country                        | 55 |
| Article 47 | Stand-By  | 56 |
| Article 48 | Dental Plan   | 56 |
| Article 49 | Vision Care Plan                                      | 57 |
| Article 50 | Group Life Insurance Plan                             | 57 |
| Article 51 | Ambulance and Hospital Semi-Private Plan              | 58 |
| Article 52 | Drug Plan   | 58 |
| Article 53 | Pay Plan Amendments                                   | 58 |
| Article 54 | Retroactive Wages                                     | 59 |
| Article 55 | Devolution and Transfer of Services                   | 59 |
| Article 56 | Long Term Disability Income Plan                      | 60 |
| Article 57 | Remoteness Allowance                                  | 60 |

| Article 58      | Carry Over of Vacation Credits Upon Retirement                               | 61 |
|-----------------|--|----|
| Article 59      | Employee Requested Education/Training  | 61 |
| Article 60      | Employer Assigned Education/Training   | 62 |
| Article 61      | Civil Service Superannuation Fund  | 63 |
| Appendix "      | 'A" Exclusion From the Terms of the Agreement                                | 65 |
| Appendix "      | 'B" Casual Employees   | 66 |
|                 | um of Agreement #1  Pro-Rating Factor  | 69 |
| Memorand<br>Re: | um of Agreement #2<br>Employment Equity                                      | 70 |
| Memorand<br>Re: | um of Agreement #3  Health Spending Account                                  | 71 |
| Memorand<br>Re: | um of Agreement #4  Full time Employees Retiree Health Care Spending Account | 73 |
| Memorand<br>Re: | um of Agreement #5 Employer Vehicles - Personal Use Rates                    | 74 |
| Memorand<br>Re: | um of Agreement #6<br>Voluntary Reduced Work Week Program                    | 75 |
| Memorand<br>Re: | um of Agreement #7  Long Term Disability Income Plan                         | 76 |
|                 | um of Agreement #8  Competencies   | 77 |
|                 | um of Agreement #9 Shift Schedule Language                                   | 78 |
| Memorand<br>Re: | um of Agreement #10  Severance for former MLCC Employees                     | 79 |
| Memorand<br>Re: | um of Agreement #11  Pharmaceutical Drug Coverage - Legacy MLCC Employees    | 81 |
| Memorand<br>Re: | um of Agreement #12  Overtime Distribution                                   | 82 |
| Salary Sche     | dule   | 83 |

<sup>\*</sup>All changes appear in **bold.** 

## Alphabetical Table of Contents

| Article 16 | Acting Status                                  | 19 |
|------------|--|----|
| Article 51 | Ambulance and Hospital Semi-Private Plan       | 58 |
| Article 37 | Arbitration Procedure                          | 45 |
| Article 58 | Carry Over of Vacation Credits Upon Retirement | 61 |
| Article 40 | Change of Work Headquarters                    | 47 |
| Article 11 | Civil Liability                                | 14 |
| Article 61 | Civil Service Superannuation Fund              | 63 |
| Article 8  | Committees                                     | 9  |
| Article 26 | Compassionate Leave                            | 33 |
| Article 38 | Contracting Out                                | 46 |
| Article 31 | Court Leave                                    | 40 |
| Article 2  | Definitions                                    | 2  |
| Article 48 | Dental Plan                                    | 56 |
| Article 55 | Devolution and Transfer of Services            | 59 |
| Article 35 | Disciplinary Action                            | 42 |
| Article 52 | Drug Plan                                      | 58 |
| Article 1  | Duration                                       | 1  |
| Article 34 | Employee File                                  | 42 |
| Article 59 | Employee Requested Education/Training          | 61 |
| Article 60 | Employer Assigned Education/Training           | 62 |
| Article 30 | Family Related Leave                           | 39 |
| Article 36 | Grievance Procedure                            | 43 |
| Article 50 | Group Life Insurance Plan                      | 57 |
| Article 22 | Hours of Work                                  | 23 |
| Article 41 | Layoff   | 48 |
| Article 29 | Leave for Birth/Adoption of Child              | 39 |
| Article 32 | Leave of Absence                               | 40 |
| Article 56 | Long Term Disability Income Plan               | 60 |

| Article 4  | Management Rights                                     | 6  |
|------------|---|----|
| Article 27 | Maternity Leave                                       | 34 |
| Article 45 | Meals and Miscellaneous Expenses                      | 55 |
| Article 15 | Merit Increase  | 17 |
| Article 9  | No Discrimination                                     | 11 |
| Article 10 | No Harassment   | 11 |
| Article 23 | Overtime  | 25 |
| Article 28 | Parental Leave  | 38 |
| Article 14 | Pay   | 17 |
| Article 53 | Pay Plan Amendments                                   | 58 |
| Article 17 | Performance Appraisal                                 | 20 |
| Article 13 | Probationary and Trial Periods                        | 16 |
| Article 3  | Recognition   | 5  |
| Article 12 | Recruitment and Promotion                             | 14 |
| Article 57 | Remoteness Allowance                                  | 60 |
| Article 43 | Resignations and Abandonment of Position              | 54 |
| Article 54 | Retroactive Wages                                     | 59 |
| Article 7  | Rights of Representatives                             | 8  |
| Article 18 | Seniority   | 20 |
| Article 42 | Severance   | 52 |
| Article 19 | Shift Premium   | 21 |
| Article 25 | Sick Leave  | 30 |
| Article 47 | Stand-By  | 56 |
| Article 21 | Statutory Holidays                                    | 22 |
| Article 39 | Technological Change                                  | 47 |
| Article 46 | Travel out of Province/Country                        | 55 |
| Article 6  | Union Business  | 6  |
| Article 5  | Union Security  | 6  |
| Article 44 | Use of Privately Owned Vehicles for Employer Business | 55 |
| Article 24 | Vacation  | 27 |

| Article 49      | Vision Care Plan   | 57 |
|-----------------|--|----|
| Article 20      | Weekend Premium  | 22 |
| Article 33      | Workers Compensation   | 40 |
| Appendix '      | "A" Exclusion From the Terms of the Agreement                                | 65 |
| Appendix '      | "B" Casual Employees   | 66 |
| Memorano<br>Re: | lum of Agreement #1<br>Pro-Rating Factor                                     | 69 |
| Memorano<br>Re: | lum of Agreement #2<br>Employment Equity                                     | 70 |
| Memorand<br>Re: | lum of Agreement #3  Health Spending Account                                 | 71 |
| Memorano<br>Re: | lum of Agreement #4 Full time Employees Retiree Health Care Spending Account | 73 |
| Memorano<br>Re: | lum of Agreement #5<br>Employer Vehicles - Personal Use Rates                | 74 |
| Memorano<br>Re: | lum of Agreement #6<br>Voluntary Reduced Work Week Program                   | 75 |
| Memorand<br>Re: | lum of Agreement #7<br>Long Term Disability Income Plan                      | 76 |
| Memorano<br>Re: | lum of Agreement #8  Competencies  | 77 |
| Memorano<br>Re: | lum of Agreement #9<br>Shift Schedule Language                               | 78 |
|                 | lum of Agreement #10  Severance for former MLCC Employees                    | 79 |
| Memorand<br>Re: | lum of Agreement #11  Pharmaceutical Drug Coverage - Legacy MLCC Employees   | 81 |
| Memorano<br>Re: | lum of Agreement #12  Overtime Distribution                                  | 82 |
| Salary Scho     | edule  | 83 |

<sup>\*</sup>All changes appear in **bold.** 

This Agreement made this 26th day of September, 2022.

#### between

#### Liquor, Gaming and Cannabis Authority of Manitoba

(hereinafter referred to as the "Employer")

of the first part

and

## Manitoba Government and General Employees' Union

(hereinafter referred to as the "Union")

of the second part.

THE PURPOSE of the Collective Agreement between the Union and the Employer is to maintain mutually satisfactory working relations between the Employer and its employees, establish and maintain rates of pay, and conditions of employment, to provide appropriate procedures for the prompt resolution of grievances and problems, and to recognize the mutual value of joint discussion, consultation and negotiation.

#### Article 1 Duration

- 1:01 This Agreement shall be effective from March 31, 2018, and shall continue in effect up to and including March 24, 2023 and shall remain in force and effect from year to year thereafter unless written notice to negotiate a renewal, or revision and renewal is given by either party at least forty-five (45) days prior to but not more than one hundred and eighty (180) days prior to the expiry date hereof. During the period required to negotiate a renewal, or revision and renewal of this Agreement, this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect without change.
- 1:02 Where notice for revision of this Agreement is given under Article 1:01, the parties agree to meet and exchange proposals for the revision of the

Collective Agreement at least thirty (30) days prior to the expiry date of the Agreement. The parties shall within twenty (20) working days following receipt of the specific proposals for revision to the Agreement commence collective bargaining. These time limits may be changed by mutual agreement between the parties hereto.

1:03 All additions, deletions, amendments and/or revisions from the previous Agreement to this Agreement shall be effective the first day of the bi-weekly pay period following the date of signing of this Collective Agreement unless otherwise specified.

#### Article 2 Definitions

- 2:01 "Accumulated Service" means the equivalent length of service acquired by the employee in accordance with the following:
  - (a) Accumulated service is calculated based on all hours for which an employee has received regular pay. This includes regular hours worked and approved leaves of absence from the Employer where regular pay is maintained.
  - (b) Accumulated service does not include overtime hours or any leaves of absence without pay or with partial pay including but not limited to suspensions without pay, worker's compensation and other leave situations.
  - (c) Accumulated service must be continuous service.
  - (d) One (1) year of accumulated service equals 1,885 hours of accumulated service.
  - (e) An employee can only receive a maximum of one (1) year of accumulated service in any twelve (12) month period.
- 2:02 "Calendar Service" means the length of continuous service from the employee's most recent date of hire to the present. Periods of layoff, while

not affecting the continuity of service, are not included in the calculation of calendar service.

- 2:03 "Casual Employee" means an employee who normally works less than the full normal daily, weekly or monthly hours of work, as the case may be, and whose work is irregular, or non-recurring or does not follow an ongoing predetermined schedule of work on a regular and recurring basis. Notwithstanding the foregoing, casual employees may be employed for a short duration to replace employees who are absent for any reason. The period of casual employment does not count as calendar or accumulated service for purposes of seniority or benefit determination. The only provisions of the Agreement which apply to casual employees are those listed in Appendix B.
- 2:04 "Dismissal" means the removal for disciplinary reasons from a position of employment for just cause.
- 2:05 "Employee" shall mean a person employed by the Employer and does not include a person employed in a position listed in "Appendix A".
- 2:06 "Fiscal Year" means the period from and including April 1 up to and including March 31.
- 2:07 "Full-time Employee" means an employee who normally works the full normal daily or weekly hours on average exclusive of overtime, as the case may be, and whose work follows an ongoing, predetermined schedule of work on a regular and recurring basis.
- 2:08 "Green Circled" means that an employee will advance through the employee's current pay increments to the maximum pay level in the normal manner. Should the new pay scale for the classification exceed the pay scale at which the green circling occurred, the employee will move to the new pay scale. Negotiated general wage increases will apply.
- 2:09 "Increment" means the increase in annual pay between each step in the appropriate pay scales as specified in this agreement, which may be granted,

- subject to merit increase as per Article 15 of this agreement, on the employee's anniversary date.
- 2:10 "Layoff" means to remove from a position of employment subject to the employee retaining such rights as laid out under the agreement.
- 2:11 "Part-time Employee" means an employee who normally works less than the full normal daily or weekly hours on average exclusive of overtime, as the case may be, and whose work follows an ongoing, predetermined schedule of work on a regular and recurring basis.
- 2:12 "Promotion" means a change of employment from one classification to another having a higher maximum rate of pay.
- 2:13 "Red Circled" means that an employee's current rate of pay is frozen until the maximum rate of pay for the new lesser position equals or exceeds the employee's current rate of pay.
- 2:14 "Representative" shall mean, officer of the Union, Steward or Staff Representative.
- 2:15 "Student" is defined as an individual, enrolled or between periods of enrollment (e.g. summer break) in an educational program, who is employed on a temporary basis for the purposes of gaining work experience or practicum as part of said educational program, or to obtain work or field experience related to their studies, or anticipated professional career development. Students shall be hired for a defined time period and be identified as a student hire. Students shall not be used to replace Union members. Should a student subsequently be hired as a casual employee they shall be covered by this agreement as per Appendix B.
- 2:16 "Term Employee" means an employee hired for a specific term of employment. The term of employment may be based on a specific period of time or the completion of a specific job or until the occurrence of a specific event.

- 2:17 "Transfer" means the removal of an employee from a position in a class and appointing the employee to another position in the same class. Also includes the movement from one work location to another.
- 2:18 "Week" for pay administration purposes only, means a period of seven (7) consecutive days from Saturday to Friday inclusive.
- 2:19 Where the context so requires, masculine and feminine genders and singular and plural numbers shall be interchangeable.

## Article 3 Recognition

- 3:01 The Employer recognizes the "Manitoba Government and General Employees' Union" as the sole bargaining agent for all employees of the Employer but excluding those employees employed in positions in "Appendix A".
- 3:02 The parties hereto agree that as a condition of employment, all new employees (except those listed in positions as outlined in Appendix A) shall receive and sign an application for membership in the Union from the Authority on the first day of employment and shall be deducted the dues as set by the Union.
- 3:03 The Employer recognizes that every employee within the scope of this Agreement shall have the right to be admitted as a member of the Union and to participate in the lawful activities thereof.
- 3:04 It is agreed by both parties that during the term of this Agreement there shall be no strikes, lockouts, stoppage of work, or slowdown, and that all disputes and grievances shall be settled in accordance with the procedures set forth in Article 36 Grievance Procedure.

## Article 4 Management Rights

- 4:01 All the functions, rights, personnel pay practices, powers and authority which the Employer has not specifically abridged, delegated or modified by this Agreement are recognized by the Union as being retained by the Employer.
- **4:02** In administering this Agreement, the Employer shall act reasonably, fairly, in good faith, and in a manner consistent with the Agreement as a whole.

## Article 5 Union Security

- 5:01 During the term of this Agreement, employees covered by this Agreement, shall pay to the Union, by payroll deduction an amount equal to the biweekly membership dues as determined by the Union. For new employees, the payroll deduction of the amount as set out above shall become effective on the first day of the bi-weekly pay period following the date the employee is covered under the terms of this Agreement.
- 5:02 The Employer shall forward to the Union the amount of the dues deducted under Article 5:01 on a biweekly basis per each applicable biweekly pay period.
- 5:03 The Employer shall provide the Union on a biweekly basis per each applicable biweekly pay period the names of the employees from whose wages, dues have been deducted showing opposite each employee's name, the amount of dues deducted for that employee.
- 5:04 The Union agrees to indemnify and save the Employer harmless against any claim or liability arising out of the application of this Article except for any claim or liability arising out of an error committed by the Employer.
- 5:05 Dues deducted shall be entered on the employee's T4 slip.

#### Article 6 Union Business

6:01 Leave of absence to attend to Union business may be granted to employees under the following conditions:

- (a) Requests for leave shall be made in writing by the Union by providing the employee with a letter of request. The employee shall submit the letter to his/her immediate supervisor who shall forward the request to the Employer for approval. The Union will also provide a copy of the written request to the Executive Director.
- (b) Requests for leave shall be made with reasonable advance notice but not less than seven (7) working days and shall be granted only where operational requirements permit. Where special or unusual circumstances prevent compliance with the seven (7) working days' notice, the request shall be considered and shall not be unreasonably denied.
- (c) Where such leave of absence has been granted, the Union shall reimburse the Employer one hundred percent (100%) of the wages paid to such employees during the approved absence.
- 6:02 (a) For time spent with the Employer representatives during Collective Bargaining, the Union will be allowed to have no more than two (2) employees present at each bargaining session on a time off with pay basis. Any additional employees shall be on a leave without pay or wage recovery basis as per Subsection :01(c).
  - (b) Prior to the commencement of negotiations, the Union shall supply the Employer with a list of employee representatives for the purpose of collective bargaining. Dependent upon operational requirements, requested leave for such employees shall not be unreasonably denied.
- 6:03 The Employer agrees to allow the Union use of space on existing bulletin boards for the purpose of posting official Union information relating to business affairs, meetings and social events. All material to be posted must first be submitted to the Executive Director or designate for approval and signature prior to posting. Such approval shall not be unreasonably denied.
- 6:04 Upon request, a Union Representative shall be provided with the opportunity to meet with newly hired employees for up to twenty (20) minutes during

regular working hours. The time shall be established by agreement subject to operational requirements.

- 6:05 (a) Upon written request to the Employer and where operational requirements permit, time off, including necessary travelling time, without loss of regular earnings and benefits, shall be granted to one (1) member elected as the representative to the Board of Directors of the Union for attendance to a maximum of six (6) Board meetings per annum. For the purpose of this section, Board meetings are considered to be a maximum of two (2) days in duration. The Union agrees to notify the Employer with the name of said representative upon election. Any meetings in excess of six (6) per annum, or for any additional member(s) elected, attendance shall be on a leave without pay or wage recovery basis as per Subsection :01 (c).
  - (b) Upon written request to the Employer, and where operational requirements permit, time off, including necessary travel time, without loss of regular earnings and benefits, shall be granted for up to two (2) Members of the Component Executive for attendance to a maximum of four (4) Executive meetings per annum. For the purposes of this section, Executive meetings are considered to be a maximum of one (1) day in duration. For any additional members or meetings attendance shall be on a leave without pay or wage recovery basis as per Subsection :01 (c).

## Article 7 Rights of Representatives

- 7:01 The Employer recognizes the Union's right to select Representatives to represent employees.
- 7:02 The Union agrees to provide the Employer with a list of Representatives and any subsequent changes. The Union shall provide appropriate identification for Representatives.
- **7:03** Representatives and employees shall not conduct Union business during their working time.

- 7:04 Where a Representative considers that an urgent complaint requires immediate investigation, the employee shall first obtain permission from their immediate supervisor before leaving work to investigate. Such permission shall not be unreasonably sought or denied.
- 7:05 Where a Representative investigates in accordance with Section :04, they shall suffer no loss of pay or benefits.
- 7:06 Where Representatives have been granted permission as referred to in 7:04 above, they shall upon return to their duties, notify their immediate supervisor of their return.
- 7:07 Where one representative attends an informal meeting with the Employer to discuss or seek to resolve a grievance, or attends a hearing as per Article 36:09 (c) of this agreement, the employee shall suffer no loss of pay or benefits.
- 7:08 Where a representative attends a formal judicial or quasi-judicial hearing, or arbitration proceeding, the Union shall reimburse the Employer one hundred percent (100%) of the wages paid to such employees during the approved absence in accordance with Article 6:01(c) of this Agreement.

#### Article 8 Committees

## 8:01 <u>Labour Management Committee</u>

The Authority and the Union agree to the formation of a Labour Management Committee. It shall be composed of two (2) bargaining unit representatives and two (2) management representatives. The MGEU staff representative may attend as required. Should this occur Management shall also have the right to have an additional representative attend. Neither the MGEU staff representative, nor the additional management representative, if in attendance, shall be entitled to vote in relation to committee decisions.

8:02 The Committee, at their first meeting shall mutually agree upon a set of Terms of Reference to guide the committee. Such terms of reference shall be reviewed and amended as agreed upon by the members of the committee every two (2) years.

- 8:03 The Committee shall meet quarterly, but may meet more or less frequently as may be considered necessary by unanimous agreement of the committee members. Such meetings will be held in person, however when unforeseen circumstances arise which prevent this, or if the committee members agree, such meetings may be conducted via available electronic communication methods.
- 8:04 (a) The main purpose of the Committee is for the exchange of information, the seeking and considering of the advice and view of each party with appropriate opportunity provided to discuss and comment in a genuine manner and recommendations made wherever possible. The committee shall not have the authority to amend, alter or modify the Collective Agreement.
  - (b) The above does not imply unanimous or majority agreement, nor does it interfere with Employer or Union rights arising out of the Collective Agreement.
  - (c) The Labour Management Committee shall not be used as a vehicle for settling disputes which should be processed through the Grievance and Arbitration Procedure.
- 8:05 The Committee shall not deal with grievances which are in the course of being processed as provided within the Grievance Procedure of this Collective Agreement.
- 8:06 Upon direction of a majority vote of Committee members, Committee members shall be allowed time off with pay, including travelling time for purposes of attendance at Committee meetings and for business arising from Committee decisions.
- 8:07 Where an employee(s) submit(s) material which is to be considered by the Committee, the Employer at its discretion may or may not request the presence of the individual(s) concerned to be in attendance at the meeting for purposes of discussion and any expenses incurred will be paid by the Employer.

## 8:08 Workplace Safety and Health Committee:

- (a) The Employer and the Union agree that it is mutually advantageous for the employees covered by this Agreement to be members of the Workplace Safety and Health Committee.
- (b) Both parties agree to abide by the prevailing legislative requirements as set out in practice by the existing Committee.
- (c) The parties agree to the establishment of a Workplace Safety and Health (WSH) Committee, consistent with the requirements of the WSH Legislation and Regulations. Nothing in the foregoing prevents the seeking of a variance, by mutual agreement of the parties, in accordance with the permissible provisions of the WSH act in relation to the composition, structure and number of committees.

#### Article 9 No Discrimination

- 9:01 The parties hereto agree that there shall be no discrimination, harassment, coercion or interference exercised or practiced with respect to any employee by reason of age, sex, marital status, sexual orientation, race, creed, colour, ethnic or national origin, political or religious affiliation or membership in the Union or activities in the Union or any other characteristics covered by Manitoba Human Rights Legislation.
- **9:02** There shall be no discrimination with respect to any employee who brings forward a complaint concerning another person employed by the Employer.
- 9:03 For the purpose of this provision, discrimination does not include disciplinary action or other non-disciplinary consequences, (e.g. letter of direction, meetings with the Employer), applied to an individual as a result of their filing of a vexatious, frivolous or knowingly false complaint.

#### Article 10 No Harassment

10:01 The Employer and the Union recognize that harassment may exist in the workplace, however, both agree that harassment will not be tolerated.

#### **10:02** Harassment shall be defined as:

- (a) Unwelcome and offensive comments, behaviours or actions which would reasonably be considered to offend, abuse, humiliate, demean or cause loss of dignity.
- (b) Unwanted sexual attention of a persistent or abusive nature by one employee to another.
- (c) An implied or expressed promise of reward for complying with a sexually oriented request.
- (d) An implied or expressed statement that compliance with a sexually oriented request is expected in order to maintain existing benefits.
- (e) An implied or expressed threat or reprisal, in the form of actual reprisal or the denial of opportunity, for refusal to comply with a sexually oriented request.
- (f) Sexually oriented behaviour that creates a negative psychological and emotional environment for work.
- 10:03 Where an employee is of the opinion that **they have** been or is being harassed by another employee, and the matter is such that it is neither appropriate nor feasible to address the issue directly with the individual displaying the harassing behaviours, the employee may forward a written complaint directly to the Manager of Human Resources. The complaint shall be marked "Personal and Confidential". Should the alleged respondent be the Manager of Human Resources, the complainant may forward the written complaint directly to the Executive Director, who may then designate the handling and/or the investigation of the complaint to an alternate.
- 10:04 The Manager of Human Resources or designate will endeavour to resolve the matter expeditiously and, wherever reasonable and practical, in a confidential manner. The respondent shall be entitled to notice of the complaint and shall be given the opportunity to respond to the complaint.

The Manager of Human Resources or designate, if unable to resolve, shall determine if an investigation is required and complete or arrange to have completed any such investigation. The complainant shall be advised of the results of the investigation, as soon as reasonably practicable, once it is completed and the appropriate action determined. Where circumstances reasonably permit, the complainant, or their designated Union Representative shall be provided an update of the status of the investigation on a monthly basis, upon request to the Employer. The update may be provided more or less frequently by mutual agreement of the Employer and complainant. For the purposes of this section, "status" refers to the progress or state of the investigation as to its proximity to completion. It does not refer to specific details or information provided by the respondent, witnesses or other involved parties. The Manager of Human Resources shall provide the findings and/or details to the Executive Director who has the authority to:

- (a) Dismiss the complaint, or
- (b) Determine the appropriate discipline, and/or
- (c) Take any action which in his or her opinion may be necessary.
- 10:05 Where the Executive Director or designate determines that a complaint has been made for frivolous or vindictive reasons, **they** shall have the authority to:
  - (a) Take disciplinary action against the complainant and/or
  - (b) Take any action against the complainant which in **their** opinion may be necessary.
  - (c) Any action taken in (a) and (b) above is subject to the grievance and arbitration procedure.

## Article 11 Civil Liability

- 11:01 If any action or proceeding is brought against any employee covered by this Agreement for an alleged tort committed by **the employee** in the performance of **their** duties, then:
  - (a) The employee, upon being served with any legal process, or upon receipt of any action of proceedings as herein before referred to, being commenced against him or her shall advise the Employer through the Executive Director of any such notification or legal process.
  - (b) The Employer shall pay any damages or costs awarded against any such employee in any such action or proceedings and all legal fees, and/or;
  - (c) The Employer shall pay any sum required to be paid by such employee in connection with the settlement of any claim made against such employee if such settlement is approved by the Employer; provided the conduct of the employee which gave rise to the action did not constitute gross negligence of **their** duty as an employee.
  - (d) Upon the employee notifying the Employer in accordance with paragraph (a) above, the Employer and the employee shall forthwith meet and appoint counsel that is mutually agreeable to both parties. Should the parties be unable to agree on counsel that is satisfactory to both, then the Employer shall unilaterally appoint counsel. The Employer accepts full responsibility for the conduct of the action and the employee agrees to co-operate fully with appointed counsel.

#### Article 12 Recruitment and Promotion

12:01 Bulletined positions whether they be vacancies resulting from promotions, demotions, transfers or new positions arising from expanded operations or vacancies as a result of an employee leaving the service for any reason shall be filled with the employee making application, who in the opinion of the Employer, is the most qualified. If no employees are qualified, the vacancies will be filled by external candidates.

- **12:02** (a) All available full-time positions covered by this Agreement shall be bulletined and the Union shall receive a copy of all bulletins.
  - (b) In addition to Article 12:02(a), the Employer agrees to bulletin all Supervisory positions.
  - (c) In cases where a bulletin is being issued in accordance with Article 12:02(b), the time limits in Articles 12:03, 12:04 and 12:05 shall not necessarily apply.
  - (d) In all cases where excluded positions are being bulletined, the Employer shall not be obligated to include wage rate or salary range.
- 12:03 All bulletins shall be posted in all work locations operated by the Authority within ten (10) working days from the date the position is approved to be filled.
- 12:04 All bulletins shall be posted for ten (10) working days and where there are no applicants or no qualified applicants for the posted vacancy, the Employer may fill the position without further posting within the next six months.
- 12:05 When an employee has submitted an application in response to a bulletin, the Employer shall advise the employee in writing of the result. If the employee was unsuccessful in their application, they may request in writing the reasons the employee was unsuccessful. Such a request shall be made within ten (10) days of receipt of the written notification that the employee was an unsuccessful applicant. The Employer shall respond within ten (10) working days of the employee's request.
- 12:06 The bulletin shall state the closing date for applications, the location of the position, the classification, the duties and responsibilities of the position, the qualifications required and the salary range. The principle of employment equity applies to all competitions.
- 12:07 The selection of employees for vacant or new positions shall be on the basis of qualifications, ability, prior work performance and seniority. Where

- qualifications, ability and prior work performance are relatively equal, seniority shall be the determining factor.
- 12:08 The Union recognizes that, in accordance with Article 12:03, the Employer may run a coincidental advertisement with preference to internal applicants.
- 12:09 Where an employee is promoted to another position, the employee shall be paid at a rate of pay set out for that position in the Pay Plan Schedule that is, if possible, one (1) full increment more than the rate of pay the employee was being paid in the employee's former position.

## Article 13 Probationary and Trial Periods

- 13:01 All new employees shall be on a probation for six (6) months from the date of the commencement of employment.
  - (a) An employee's probation period may be extended by the Executive Director or designate. Such extension may be for a maximum period of six (6) months.
  - (b) In the event of a lengthy absence (twenty (20) working days or more) due to illness or injury during the probation period, the Executive Director or designate may extend the probation period for longer than twelve (12) consecutive months. The total time spent on probation, while at work, shall in no instance exceed twelve (12) months.
  - (c) An employee shall be notified in writing of any extension of the probation period under Section (a) or (b) prior to the expiry of the probation period. A meeting may be held with the employee to discuss the extension. The employee has the option to have a representative present.
  - (d) An employee's probation period of six (6) months plus any extension shall be considered the initial probation period. This initial probation period shall not exceed twelve (12) months, subject to 13:01(b) where applicable.

- 13:02 An employee who is rejected during the initial probation period may grieve the rejection, in accordance with Article 36 Grievance Procedure, within twenty (20) working days from the date the employee received notice of the rejection. The Executive Director shall hold a hearing to discuss the grievance with the employee. The employee has the option to have a Representative present. The decision of the Executive Director shall be final for such grievance.
- 13:03 Subject to Section :02, the rejection on probation of an employee is not arbitrable.

## Article 14 Pay

- 14:01 (a) An employee who works seventy-two and one-half (72 ½) hours every two (2) weeks shall be paid the current biweekly rate for **their** classification contained within this Collective Agreement.
  - (b) Where an employee works less than seventy-two and one-half (72 ½) hours during a biweekly period, the employee shall be paid for all regular hours worked at a rate determined by dividing the biweekly rate for the classification by seventy-two and one-half (72 ½).
- 14:02 The hourly rate of pay described in the pay schedule shall be the official rate of pay. The biweekly pay shall be calculated by multiplying the hourly rate of pay by the normal number of hours in a biweekly pay period as indicated in the Pay Plan Schedule and rounding to the nearest cent.

#### Article 15 Merit Increase

- 15:01 "Merit Increase" means an increase in the rate of pay of an employee within the employee's pay range which may be granted in recognition of satisfactory service on the employee's anniversary date.
- 15:02 (a) The initial anniversary date of an employee shall be established as the first of the month which follows the date on which the employee commenced employment.

- (b) The anniversary date for an employee who as a result of promotion or transfer received an increase in rate of pay equivalent to two or more merit increases shall become the first day of the month that falls on or after the effective date of the promotion or transfer and the employee shall be eligible for **their** next merit increase twelve (12) months from the anniversary date established in accordance with this section.
- 15:03 The effective date for an employee's merit increase shall be the first day of the bi-weekly pay period, which includes the employee's anniversary date.
- 15:04 Where the pay range for an employee's classification permits, an employee shall be eligible for a merit increase twelve (12) months from the employee's anniversary date established in accordance with this Article provided the employee has accumulated one thousand (1000) regular hours of work during that preceding twelve (12) month period.
- 15:05 (a) Where an employee has not accumulated one thousand (1000) hours in Article 15:04, they shall be eligible for a merit increase review upon the completion of one thousand (1000) regular hours.
  - (b) Where an employee has been on maternity leave and/or parental leave and as a result of such leave(s) fails to be eligible for a merit increase under Article 15:04, the employee will be eligible for a merit increase on the first of the month following the date on which the employee accumulates the necessary regular hours of work. The effective date of the increase shall be the first day of the bi-weekly pay period, which includes the first of the month.
- **15:06** Where an employee is granted a merit increase in accordance with Article 15:05:
  - (a) The merit increase shall be effective on the first day of the bi-weekly pay period in which one thousand (1000) hours were accumulated; and
  - (b) The employee's new anniversary date shall be established as the first of the month following the granting of this merit increase.

15:07 Where an employee has been denied a merit increase, the employee shall be notified in writing of the reason for the denial on or before the anniversary date.

#### **15:08** Where a merit increase has been denied:

- (a) The merit increase may be granted to the employee on any subsequent monthly anniversary date which is not less than three (3) months from the employee's anniversary date. The effective date for such a merit increase shall be the first day of the bi weekly pay period which includes the subsequent monthly anniversary date referred to;
- (b) The employee may file a grievance in accordance with the grievance procedure. No grievance may be initiated where a merit increase is not granted to an employee under Article 15:08(a);
- (c) The employee is eligible for a merit increase at the employee's next anniversary date notwithstanding that the employee was granted a merit increase under Article 15:08(a).

## Article 16 Acting Status

16:01 Where the Employer directs an employee employed in one position to temporarily take over the duties and responsibilities of some other position having a higher grade of pay, and provided the employee takes over and continues to perform for one (1) or more consecutive working days the duties and responsibilities of that other position with acting status, the employee shall be paid at the rate of pay for that other position from the date of taking over the duties and responsibilities of that other position until the temporary appointment is revoked; and upon the temporary appointment being revoked the employee shall, unless they are appointed or promoted to some other position, revert to the employee's original position and be paid at the rate of pay for the employee's original position that they would be paid if they had never held the temporary appointment.

- 16:02 For purposes of interpretation of this Article, "the duties and responsibilities" under this article means the duties and responsibilities that would have been performed by the incumbent during the period in which **they have** been replaced.
- 16:03 All bargaining unit acting status appointments will be reviewed after a nine (9) month period.

## Article 17 Performance Appraisal

17:01 Where a formal assessment of an employee's performance is made, the employee concerned shall be given an opportunity to sign the assessment form upon its presentation to indicate that its contents have been read. Employees shall have the right to place their own comments on the form where such space is provided or to append their comments to the form where no space is provided. An employee shall, unless **they** decline, receive a copy of the assessment when presented for employee signature. Refusal to sign shall be signified on the performance appraisal form and the absence of the employee's signature will not render the performance appraisal invalid.

## Article 18 Seniority

- **18:01** (a) Seniority for service will be based on credited hours, and will be expressed in years of service. Credited service for this purpose shall be limited to:
  - (i) Regular paid time;
  - (ii) Periods of Workers Compensation;
  - (iii) Periods of Maternity Leave and/or Parental Leave;
  - (iv) Periods of Adoptive Parent Leave;
  - (v) Approved Educational Leave to a maximum of one (1) year;

- (vi) Leaves without pay to a maximum accumulation of twenty (20) working days in a calendar year;
- (vii) Any sick leave without pay necessary to satisfy the elimination period of the Long Term Disability Income Plan;
- (viii) Periods of leave while on the Long Term Disability Plan.
- 18:02 Updated Seniority Lists will be prepared annually by the Employer by April 1 of each year, based on service up to and including December 31 of the previous year. The list will be posted at all work locations.
- 18:03 An employee shall notify the Employer of any error in the calculation of their seniority within the calendar year of the Seniority List having been posted.
- 18:04 An employee will lose all seniority when the employee:
  - (a) Resigns;
  - (b) Retires;
  - (c) Is dismissed and not reinstated;
  - (d) Dies;
  - (e) Is permanently laid off.

### Article 19 Shift Premium

- 19:01 An employee who works a shift where one-half (½) or more of the hours are worked between 5:00 p.m. and 5:00 a.m. shall receive a shift premium of twelve dollars and eighty cents (\$12.80) for the shift in addition to the employee's regular pay.
- 19:02 The shift premium shall not be included in the calculation of overtime payments, superannuation, group life insurance, sick leave payments, vacation pay, or any other employee benefits.

#### Article 20 Weekend Premium

20:01 An employee shall receive weekend premium of one dollar and twenty five cents (\$1.25) **per hour** for all regular hours of work or portions thereof on a Saturday or Sunday. For the purposes of this section, weekend is defined as being between the hours of Saturday at 00:01 am and Sunday at 11:59 pm, inclusive.

**20:02** The weekend premium shall not be included in the calculation of overtime payments, superannuation, group life insurance, sick leave payments, vacation pay, or any other employee benefits.

## Article 21 Statutory Holidays

**21:01** The following are recognized holidays:

New Year's Day Terry Fox Day (1st weekend in August)

Louis Riel Day Labour Day

Good Friday Thanksgiving Day
Easter Monday Remembrance Day

Victoria Day Christmas Day
Canada Day (July 1) Boxing Day

And any other holiday proclaimed by Federal or Provincial Statute.

Where any of the holidays fall on a Saturday or Sunday, the holiday shall be observed on the following Monday. Where holidays fall on both Saturday and Sunday, the holidays shall be observed on the following Monday and Tuesday.

- 21:02 An employee who is required to work on the holiday
  - (a) When it is observed on the employee's day of rest shall receive, in addition to the regular pay for the holiday to which the employee may be entitled, the overtime pay rate based on two (2) times the employee's regular rate of pay for all time worked on the holiday or be granted leave

- for such hours worked at the rate of two (2) hours for each hour worked. The leave shall be taken at a time that is mutually agreeable between the employee and the Employer.
- (b) When it is observed on a day where the employee is required to work a regularly scheduled shift, in addition to the regular pay for the holiday to which the employee may be entitled, the overtime pay rate based on one and one half (1 1/2) times the employee's regular rate of pay for all time worked on the holiday or be granted leave for such hours worked at the rate of one and one half (1 1/2) hours for each hour worked. The leave shall be taken at a time that is mutually agreeable between the employee and the Employer.
- 21:03 (a) Subject to (b), employees shall be entitled to cease work at one o'clock in the afternoon on December 24th when that day falls on Monday through Friday. This day shall be considered a full working day for purposes of calculation.
  - (b) Where the Employer requires an employee to work a regular work day on December 24th when that day falls on Monday through Friday inclusive, such employee shall be entitled to one-half (½) day of compensatory leave with pay to a maximum of four (4) hours.

#### Article 22 Hours of Work

- 22:01 All shifts shall be arranged to provide for consecutive hours of work each day and no employee shall be requested to commence work prior to the employee's scheduled commencement time unless for purposes of overtime.
- 22:02 (a) Hours and tours of duty for all employees covered by this Agreement shall be arranged for the efficient operation of specific areas. An employee shall work a regular work day of seven and one-quarter (7.25) consecutive hours which will include rest periods but exclude meal periods.

- (b) Normal office hours for employees in classifications other than those outlined in (d) and (e) herein, shall be 8:00 a.m. to 4:30 p.m. from Monday to Friday inclusive. Employees working normal office hours shall work seventy two and one half (72.5) hours in regular biweekly period.
- (c) Hours of work for part-time or term employees shall not exceed those of full-time employees in any classification.
- (d) Full-time Employees in the **positions** of Auditor **and Investigator** may work varied hours provided the hours worked are consistent with seventy-two and one-half (72.5) hours per bi-weekly pay period.
- (e) Full time Inspector 1 and 2s may work varied hours provided they are consistent with the seventy-two and one half (72.5) hours biweekly pay period and the ten days per pay period, as per assigned shift schedule. All such shifts shall be posted a minimum of two (2) weeks prior to their commencement, however in the case of occasional requirement for shift change, within the thirteen (13) week period, the Employer shall post such change not later than fourteen (14) calendar days prior to their commencement.
- 22:03 All employees who work five (5) or more consecutive hours shall receive a lunch break of not less than thirty (30) minutes to be taken as close to the middle of their shift as possible.
- 22:04 All employees working seven and one quarter hours (7.25) per day, shall have two (2) rest periods of fifteen (15) minutes each per day, one (1) before lunch as close to the middle of the first part of the day and one (1) after lunch to be taken as close to the middle of the second half of the day.
- **22:05** Employees shall not be required to work split shifts.
- 22:06 Inspectors' initiated requests for weekly or single day shift changes between inspectors may be approved. Such requests shall be infrequent and will not be unreasonably denied. Shift changes must have prior approval of the

Supervisor or Manager. No shift change request shall be approved if an Inspector will exceed seventy two and one half (72.5) hours per biweekly period or seven and one quarter hour (7.25) hours per day.

## 22:07 Banking of Regular Time

When an employee initiates a request to exchange work for time off, or time off for work, such exchanges are considered to be the banking of regular time (not overtime) and are subject to the approval of the appropriate manager.

- (a) Time will be earned prior to the taking of any requested time off.

  Approval of these regular time exchanges shall be confirmed in writing and shall not be unreasonably denied.
- (b) Employees shall not be requested to initiate such exchanges or to bank regular time in substitution for overtime as defined in the Collective Agreement.
- (c) Such accumulated time shall not be used for the purposes of time off for any hours where the employee is scheduled to work past ten (10) pm.
- (d) The time banked for hours accumulated as per this article shall not exceed thirty-six and one quarter (36.25) hours at any time.

#### Article 23 Overtime

- 23:01 Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed as to obligate any employee to work overtime.
- 23:02 An employee who is required to work overtime on a regular work day is entitled to compensation at time and one half (1½x) for all overtime worked. Daily overtime will be paid after seven and one quarter (7.25) hours.
- 23:03 An employee who is required to work on the employee's day of rest is entitled to compensation at double time (2x) for all time worked with a minimum payment for three (3) hours overtime.

- 23:04 At the employee's option, overtime shall be compensated by paying the employee for all time worked at the applicable overtime rate, at the hourly rate at which it was earned, or by granting the employee the equivalent time off in lieu of payment.
- 23:05 An employee shall have the option of taking time off in lieu of overtime pay for overtime accumulated up to February 1st in the current fiscal year. Time taken off in lieu of pay must be taken before the end of the fiscal year and shall be by the mutual agreement of the employee and the Employer.
  - (a) It is agreed that an attempt will be made to allow employees to take time off during the current fiscal year in lieu of overtime worked during February and March of that fiscal year.
  - (b) If this is not operationally feasible, up to twenty-four (24) hours of accumulated time may be carried over into the next fiscal year with the provision that such accumulated time off must be taken at a mutually agreeable time prior to the end of August. Any accumulated time in excess of twenty-four (24) hours, must be taken in pay.
- 23:06 An employee entitled to overtime compensation, if called out or scheduled to work additional hours, shall receive for the work, a minimum payment equivalent to three (3) hours at the applicable overtime rate provided that the period of overtime worked by the employee is not contiguous to the employee's scheduled working hours. A meal break shall not be regarded as affecting contiguity.
- 23:07 Overtime monies shall be paid to employees as expeditiously as possible.
- 23:08 An employee who works two (2) hours of overtime contiguous to **their** normal working day shall receive a meal allowance of twelve dollars (\$12.00). The meal allowance will not be paid in instances where a meal expense is claimed under Article 45 or Article 46.

#### Article 24 Vacation

- 24:01 For the purposes of this Agreement, a vacation year is the period beginning on April 1 and ending on March 31 of the next year. An employee shall accumulate vacation credits from the date of commencement of employment.
- 24:02 Vacation leave credits are calculated based on accumulated service. In addition, for purposes of calculation of vacation credits only, an employee shall be considered to have earned accumulated service in accordance with the following:
  - (a) Where an employee is absent due to injuries or disabilities for which compensation is paid under The Workers Compensation Act, vacation leave shall accumulate as if the employee were not absent, but the extent of such accumulation shall not continue beyond twelve (12) consecutive calendar months from the date the injury or disability occurred;
  - (b) Full-time employees will receive vacation credits during approved leaves of absence without pay up to a maximum of thirty-six and one quarter (36.25) hours in a vacation year.
- 24:03 Under no circumstances can an employee earn more than the maximum vacation credits that can be accumulated in any vacation year; i.e. fifteen (15), twenty (20), twenty-five (25), or thirty (30) vacation credits per vacation year.
- **24:04** Employees shall earn vacation leave credits during each vacation year on the following basis:
  - (a) Employees who have completed less than two (2) calendar years of service, shall earn vacation credits at the rate of a maximum of fifteen (15) credits for 1,885 hours of accumulated service to be taken in the vacation year following the vacation year in which the vacation is earned;
  - (b) Commencing from the beginning of the vacation year in which two (2) calendar years of service will be completed, employees shall earn vacation credits at the rate of a maximum of twenty (20) credits for

- 1,885 hours of accumulated service to be taken in the vacation year in which three (3) calendar years of service are completed and yearly thereafter;
- (c) Commencing from the beginning of the vacation year in which nine (9) calendar years of service will be completed, employees shall earn vacation credits at the rate of a maximum of twenty-five (25) credits for 1,885 hours of accumulated service to be taken in the vacation year in which ten (10) calendar years of service are completed and yearly thereafter;
- (d) Effective April 1, 2007, commencing from the beginning of the vacation year in which nineteen (19) calendar years of service will be completed, employees shall earn vacation credits at the rate of a maximum of thirty (30) credits for 1,885 hours of accumulated service to be taken in the vacation year in which twenty (20) calendar years of service are completed and yearly thereafter;
- (e) Employees will receive a bonus five (5) vacation credits upon completion of thirty-five (35) years of service and again upon completing each two (2) years of succeeding service. The bonus credits apply only in the year in which they are received, and not in the following year.
- (f) Notwithstanding Article 24:04 (a), (b), (c), and (d), employees terminating in their second (2nd) calendar year of service shall have their vacation leave credits cashed out at the rate of a maximum of fifteen (15) credits for 1,885 hours of accumulated service. Employees terminating in their ninth (9th) calendar year of service shall have their vacation leave credits cashed out at the rate of a maximum of twenty (20) credits for 1,885 hours of accumulated service. Employees terminating in their nineteenth (19th) year of service shall have their vacation leave credits cashed out at the rate of a maximum twenty-five (25) credits for 1885 hours of accumulated service.

- **24:05** To calculate the number of vacation hours an employee has earned in a vacation year:
  - (a) Determine the number of hours of accumulated service as determined in Article 24:02 that the employee has earned in a vacation year to a maximum of 1,885 hours;
  - (b) Divide by 1,885;
  - (c) Multiply by the employee's vacation leave credit accrual rate, i.e. fifteen (15), twenty (20), twenty-five (25), or thirty (30);
  - (d) Multiply by the daily hours for the employee's classification, i.e. seven and one-quarter (7½) and round down to the nearest quarter (½) hour.
- **24:06** Vacation credits do not accrue when an employee receives a vacation pay cash out in lieu of vacation time taken.
- 24:07 (a) Subject to Article 24:08 (e) vacation leave shall be taken in the vacation year following the vacation year in which it is earned. However, with the approval of the Employer, vacation that has been earned in a vacation year may be taken in that vacation year;
  - (b) Under no circumstances shall vacation leave be taken in advance of when it was earned;
  - (c) Where operational requirements permit, vacation leave may be taken subject to the approval of the Employer;
  - (d) The Employer may authorize vacation to commence on any day;
  - (e) The Employer may authorize that vacation leave be carried forward to the next following year to supplement the vacation period in that year, but in no case will a vacation carry-over be allowed which comprises more than one (1) previous year's vacation entitlement;
  - (f) The Employer may authorize an employee to take vacation leave in two(2) or more periods;

- (g) The Employer, if it finds it necessary, may require an employee to take vacation leave in two (2) or more periods. Normally any such periods shall not be less than one (1) week in length.
- 24:08 Where the Employer has been unable to schedule part or all of an employee's vacation within the vacation year and as a result finds it necessary to restrict the whole or part of the vacation leave of an employee, the Employer may authorize payment in lieu of vacation. Such pay shall not be subject to deduction of pension fund contributions or life insurance contributions. An employee whose vacation leave has been restricted may, in lieu of receiving such pay, elect to carry over such vacation leave to the following year.
- **24:09** Vacation leave shall be taken on the basis of seniority.
- 24:10 Where an employee dies, the employee's estate shall receive the employee's accumulated vacation credits.

#### Article 25 Sick Leave

- 25:01 It is agreed by both parties that sick leave may be granted by the Employer where an employee is unable to work as a result of illness or injury.
- **25:02** Sick leave credit shall accumulate at a rate of:
  - (a) During the first four (4) years of calendar service at the rate of three point six two five (3.625) hours for each seventy-two point five (72.5) hours of accumulated service; and
  - (b) After the first four (4) years of calendar service at the rate of seven and one-quarter (7.25) hours for each seventy-two point five (72.5) hours of accumulated service.
- 25:03 Sick leave credit shall not accumulate beyond two hundred and eight (208) working days (1508 hours).
- **25:04** Commencing from the first day of each absence due to illness or injury, an employee shall be eligible for sick leave with pay.

- 25:05 Sick leave shall not be taken in advance of when it is earned.
- 25:06 An employee's sick leave credit shall be reduced by the amount of sick leave paid by the Employer for the absence.
- 25:07 Sick leave shall not accumulate during periods when an employee is:
  - (a) Absent on sick leave and/or absent on Workers Compensation for a period of more than ten (10) consecutive working days, or
  - (b) Absent without leave, or
  - (c) Absent on leave of absence without pay.
- 25:08 Where an employee is to be absent because of illness, the employee shall endeavour to notify the employee's immediate supervisor of the absence due to illness at least one hour (1) prior to and not more than thirty (30) minutes after the normal hour of beginning work, or as soon thereafter as the means of communication permit.
- 25:09 An employee who has been absent because of sickness for a period of more than three (3) consecutive working days shall furnish, when requested by the Employer, at any time during this period of sickness, a medical certificate certifying that the employee is or was unable to be present at work because of the illness. Where an employee fails to produce a medical certificate acceptable to the Employer, the employee shall not be entitled to be paid for the period of absence.
- An employee who has been absent because of sickness for a period of three (3) working days or less may be required to furnish, when requested by the Employer, a medical certificate as required under Section :09. Failure to produce a certificate acceptable to the Employer will result in a loss of pay for the period of absence.
- **25:11** (a) The Employer may require that the employee undergo an independent medical examination by a doctor agreed upon by the Employer and employee.

- (b) If the Employer and employee cannot agree on a doctor, the Employer may appoint a doctor to provide an independent medical examination.
- (c) In this event, the employee will authorize **their** doctor(s) to make the required information available to the doctor appointed by the Employer and shall, if requested, substantiate that **they have** given this authorization. If the employee fails to authorize the required releases, **the employee's** absence from work may be considered as unauthorized, consequently without pay, and subject to disciplinary action.
- (d) The cost of a medical examination and certificate, as per this clause, shall be borne by the Employer.
- 25:12 Where an employee becomes ill during the period of the employee's scheduled annual vacation, the Employer may grant sick leave and credit the employee with alternate days' vacation equivalent to the number of days approved sick leave providing the illness is over three (3) days and may require hospitalization. The employee will be responsible to provide proof of illness and/or hospitalization satisfactory to the Employer.
- 25:13 Time off for medical and dental examinations or treatments, and other such treatments and examinations as prescribed by a medical practitioner, or treatments and examinations by nurse practitioners, physiotherapists and chiropractors, including reasonable travel time, shall be granted to employees and such time off shall be chargeable against the employee's accumulated sick leave credits.

Whenever possible, appointments are to be made on the employee's day off or at a time when the employee is not on duty. If the above is not possible, the employee will endeavour to make the appointment at a time which is least disruptive to the workplace.

If the employee chooses a doctor or dentist outside of their community, such time off with pay will be granted to a maximum of three (3) hours. Increased time may be considered by the Employer in extenuating circumstances on an individual basis.

Should it be necessary for an employee to attend a doctor or dentist outside of their community by reason of non-availability of service in their community, the employee shall be allowed up to one (1) regular work day off with pay, to the extent that sick leave credits have been accumulated, for the time necessary to attend such appointment to the nearest point of available service. Employees residing north of the 53rd parallel shall be allowed up to two (2) regular work days off with pay.

## Article 26 Compassionate Leave

- 26:01 An employee shall be granted four (4) days leave with pay in the event of the death of a member of the employee's immediate family. For purposes of this section, immediate family is defined as: father (step father), mother (step mother), mother- in-law, father-in-law, grandparent, brother, sister, spouse, child, step child or ward of the employee or a relative permanently residing in the employee's household or with whom the employee resides and commonlaw spouse or life partner.
- 26:02 An employee shall be granted one (1) day leave with pay in the event of the death of an employee's son-in-law, daughter-in-law, brother-in-law, sister-in-law, grandchild, aunt, uncle, niece and nephew.
- 26:03 An additional two (2) days shall be granted where it is necessary for the purpose of travelling at least two hundred twenty-five (225) km from the employee's home to attend the funeral.
- 26:04 In addition to the two (2) days granted in accordance with Article 26:03, an additional two (2) days shall be granted for the purpose of travelling more than two thousand (2,000) kilometers (one-way) from the employee's home to attend the funeral of a member of the employee's immediate family. This may be granted at the discretion of the Employer.
- 26:05 (a) An employee shall be granted leave with pay to a maximum of one (1) day for acting as a pallbearer.

(b) An employee may be granted leave with pay to a maximum of four (4) hours for attendance at the funeral of a friend.

## Article 27 Maternity Leave

27:01 An employee who qualifies for Maternity Leave may apply for such leave in accordance with either Plan A or Plan B but not both.

### Plan "A"

- **27:02** In order to qualify for Plan A, a pregnant employee must:
  - (a) Have completed seven (7) continuous months of employment with the Employer;
  - (b) Submit to the Employer an application in writing for leave under Plan A at least four (4) weeks before the day specified by **the employee** in the application as the day on which **they** intend to commence such leave; and
  - (c) Provide the Employer with a certificate of a duly qualified medical practitioner certifying that **the employee** is pregnant and specifying the estimated date of her delivery.
- 27:03 An employee who qualifies is entitled to and shall be granted Maternity Leave without pay consisting of:
  - (a) A period not exceeding seventeen (17) weeks if delivery occurs on or before the date of delivery specified in the certificate mentioned in Article 27:02(c); or;
  - (b) A period of seventeen (17) weeks plus an additional period equal to the period between the date of delivery specified in the certificate mentioned in Article 27:02(c), and the actual date of delivery, if delivery occurs after the date mentioned in that certificate;
  - (c) The Employer may vary the length of maternity leave upon proper certification by the attending physician.

27:04 Effective date of signing, an employee who has been granted Maternity Leave shall be permitted to apply up to a maximum of five (5) days of the employee's accumulated sick leave against the Employment Insurance waiting period.

An employee who has been granted maternity leave shall also be permitted to apply up to an additional five (5) days of her accumulated sick leave:

- (a) in the week immediately following the discontinuation of payments of Employment Insurance Maternity benefits if the employee does not receive Employment Insurance Parental Benefits; or
- (b) in the week immediately following the discontinuation of payments of Employment Insurance Parental benefits, if the employee receives Employment Insurance Parental benefits immediately following the discontinuation of Employment Insurance Maternity Benefits.

Should an employee not be required to serve any waiting period before the commencement of Employment Insurance benefits, they will be permitted to apply up to ten (10) days of their accumulated sick leave as in paragraph (a) or (b) above.

Should the employee not return to work following her Maternity Leave for a period of employment sufficient to allow for re-accumulation of the number of sick days granted, the employee shall compensate the Employer for the balance of the outstanding days at the time of termination. Approved sick leave with pay granted during the period of return shall be counted as days worked.

### Plan "B"

**27:05** In order to qualify for Plan B a pregnant employee must:

- (a) Have completed seven (7) continuous months of employment for or with the Employer;
- (b) Submit to the Employer an application in writing, for leave under Plan B at least four (4) weeks before the day specified by **the employee** in the application as the day on which **the employee** intends to commence such leave;
- (c) Provide the Employer with a certificate of a duly qualified medical practitioner certifying that **the employee** is pregnant and specifying the estimated date of **the employee's** delivery;
- (d) Provide the Employer with proof that **the employee** has applied for Employment Insurance benefits and that **Service Canada** has agreed that the employee has qualified for and is entitled to such Employment Insurance Maternity benefits pursuant to Section 22, Employment Insurance Act.
- 27:06 An applicant for Maternity Leave under Plan B must sign an agreement with the Employer providing that:
  - (a) The employee will return to work and remain in the employ of the Employer on a full-time basis for at least six (6) months following the employee's return to work; and
  - (b) If **the employee** does not take leave as provided in Article 28 Parental Leave **the employee** will return to work on the date of the expiry of **the employee's** Maternity Leave; and
  - (c) If **the employee** does take leave as provided in Article 28 Parental Leave, **the employee** will return to work on the date of the expiry of **their** Parental Leave; and
  - (d) Should **the employee** fail to return to work as provided above, **the employee** is indebted to the Employer for the full amount of pay received from the Employer as a maternity allowance during **their** entire period of Maternity Leave.

- 27:07 At the employee's request, the Employer may authorize an employee who has received Maternity Leave under Plan B to return to work on a part-time basis for a period of twelve (12) months.
- 27:08 An employee who qualifies is entitled to a Maternity Leave consisting of:
  - (a) A period not exceeding seventeen (17) weeks if delivery occurs on or before the date of delivery specified in the certificate mentioned in Subsection :05(c); or
  - (b) A period of seventeen (17) weeks plus an additional period equal to the period between the date of delivery specified in the certificate mentioned in Subsection :05(c), and the actual date of delivery, if delivery occurs after the date mentioned in that certificate;
  - (c) The Employer may vary the length of Maternity Leave upon proper certification by the attending physician.
- **27:09 Effective date of signing, d**uring the period of Maternity Leave, an employee who qualifies is entitled to a Supplement to Employment Insurance (EI) Maternity Benefits as follows:
  - (a) An employee shall receive ninety-three percent (93%) of their weekly rate of pay during the one week Employment Insurance waiting period;
  - (b) For up to a maximum of fifteen (15) additional weeks, payments equivalent to the difference between the Employment Insurance benefits the employee is eligible to receive and ninety-three percent (93%) of her weekly rate of pay;
  - (c) For the week immediately following the discontinuation of payments of Employment Insurance Maternity benefits, an employee shall receive ninety-three percent (93%) of their weekly rate of pay provided the employee does not receive Employment Insurance Parental Benefits immediately following the exhaustion of the Employment Insurance Maternity Benefits.

If the employee receives Employment Insurance Parental Benefits immediately following the exhaustion of Employment Insurance Maternity Benefits, the employee shall receive ninety-three percent (93%) of the employee's weekly rate of pay for the week immediately following the discontinuation of payments of Employment Insurance Parental Benefits.

Should an employee not be required to serve any waiting period before the commencement of Employment Insurance benefits, the benefits under paragraph (a) above will be paid in the week following payment in paragraph (c).

- (d) All other time as may be provided under :09, shall be leave without pay.
- **27:10** Plan B does not apply to term employees.
- 27:11 During the period of Maternity Leave, benefits will not accrue. However, the period of Maternity Leave will count as service towards eligibility for long service vacation and long service sick leave entitlement.
- Where an employee's anniversary date falls during the period of Maternity Leave under Plan A or B, the employee shall be eligible to receive a merit increase effective the date upon which the employee returns to their position of employment.
- 27:13 Sections 57 and Sections 60(1) through 60(4) inclusive of the Employment Standards Code respecting maternity leave shall apply "mutatis mutandis".

#### Article 28 Parental Leave

- 28:01 In order to qualify for Parental Leave, an employee must:
  - (a) Be the natural mother of a child; or
  - (b) Be the natural father of a child or must assume actual care and custody of **the** new born child; or
  - (c) Adopt a child under the law of a province.

- 28:02 An employee who qualifies under Article 28:01 must:
  - (a) Have completed seven (7) continuous months of employment; and
  - (b) Submit to the Employer an application in writing for Parental Leave at least four (4) weeks before the day specified in the application as the day on which the employee intends to commence the leave.
- 28:03 An employee who qualifies in accordance with Articles 28:01 and 28:02 is entitled to Parental Leave without pay for a continuous period of up to sixty-three (63) weeks.
- 28:04 Subject to Article 28:05, Parental Leave must commence no later than seventy-eight (78) weeks after the date of the birth or adoption of the child or the date on which the child comes into the actual care and custody of the employee.
- 28:05 Where an employee takes Parental Leave in addition to Maternity Leave, the employee must commence the Parental Leave immediately on expiry of the Maternity Leave without a return to work unless otherwise approved by the Employer.

# Article 29 Leave for Birth/Adoption of Child

29:01 An employee shall be granted one (1) day's leave with pay, to attend needs directly related to the birth/adoption of their child. At the employee's option, such leave shall be granted on the day of, or the day following the birth or adoption of their child, or the day of the mother's admission to, or discharge from hospital or such day as may be mutually agreed.

## Article 30 Family Related Leave

30:01 An employee shall be entitled up to five (5) days of leave with pay in each fiscal year to be granted on the recommendation of the Employer as follows and charged against the employee's sick leave credits:

- (a) The leave shall be for the purpose of attending to family responsibilities which are real, immediate and unavoidable and which necessitate the employee's absence from work;
- (b) The family responsibilities of the employee could not reasonably be accommodated by some other person or in some other way or at some other time;
- (c) The amount of leave is intended to cover the period until appropriate alternative arrangements can be made.
- 30:02 An employee's sick leave accumulation under Article 25 Sick Leave will not be reduced to less than twelve (12) days per year as a result of the application of this provision.

### Article 31 Court Leave

- 31:01 An employee who is summoned for jury duty or who receives a summons or subpoena to appear as a witness in a court proceeding, other than a court proceeding occasioned by the employee's private affairs, shall be granted a leave of absence with pay for the required period and all jury or witness fees received by the employee shall be remitted to the Employer.
- 31:02 An employee eligible for court leave in accordance with Section :01 will be paid for all scheduled hours while absent on approved court leave.

#### Article 32 Leave of Absence

32:01 Employees may request leave(s) of absence without pay and such requests shall not be unreasonably denied by the Employer.

## Article 33 Workers Compensation

33:01 Where an employee is unable to work as a result of a compensable injury incurred in the course of performing regular duties that employee shall apply for Workers Compensation benefits.

- 33:02 Where an employee is absent due to injuries or disabilities for which compensation is paid under The Workers Compensation Act, vacation leave shall accumulate as if the employee were not absent, but the extent of such accumulation shall not continue beyond twelve (12) consecutive calendar months' from the date the injury or disability occurred.
- 33:03 Where an employee is injured on the job and is required to leave for medical treatment and/or is sent home by management due to the injury, the employee shall incur no loss in regular pay and benefits for the day on which the accident occurs.
- 33:04 Transportation to the nearest physician or hospital for employees requiring immediate medical care as a result of an on-the-job accident shall be provided by or at the expense of the Employer if it is not covered by a medical plan.
- When an employee is unable to work and is in receipt of Workers

  Compensation allowance as a result of an injury incurred in the course of the employee's duties, the employee may elect to be paid an additional amount which, when combined with the compensation allowance, shall ensure the maintenance of net salary. Such additional amount shall be chargeable to the employee's sick leave credits accrued at the time the employee commences receipt of Workers Compensation allowances, and such additional payments shall be payable until the employee's accrued sick leave credits have been exhausted. Net salary shall be as determined by the Workers Compensation Board.
- **33:06** Employees may only be "topped up" by ten percent (10%) of net salary.
- 33:07 If at any time it is decided by the Workers Compensation board that the additional amount in Sections :05 or :06, must be offset against benefits otherwise payable by the Workers Compensation Board, then such additional amount shall not be payable.

## Article 34 Employee File

- 34:01 After five (5) years have elapsed since the disciplinary action was taken or unsatisfactory report was filed, provided there has been no re- occurrence of a similar nature, the employee can initiate a written request and have removed and destroyed from his/her file any disciplinary report or unsatisfactory report (excluding performance appraisals) placed on the personnel file of this employee.
- 34:02 Upon written request of an employee, the personnel file of that employee shall be made available for the employee's full examination. Such examination shall be in the presence of a representative of the Employer. The employee has the option to have a Union Representative present.

## Article 35 Disciplinary Action

- **35:01** An employee shall only be disciplined for just cause.
- 35:02 A hearing may be held with an employee prior to making a determination to discipline an employee. The employee shall have the option to have a representative present.
- 35:03 Where a written report recommending disciplinary action is to be placed on an employee's file, the employee shall be given an opportunity to sign the report indicating **the employee** has read it. Upon signing the employee shall receive a copy of such report.
- Where disciplinary action has been taken the employee shall be advised in writing of the disciplinary action.
- **35:05** An employee may grieve disciplinary action in accordance with the Grievance Procedure.
- 35:06 No notice or payment in lieu thereof is required where an employee is dismissed with cause.

#### Article 36 Grievance Procedure

- 36:01 Wherever possible an employee shall discuss the complaint with the employee's supervisor prior to a written grievance being initiated. The aggrieved employee shall have the option to have a representative present at such a discussion. When a grievance cannot be presented in person at any step, it may be transmitted by registered mail, courier, or other form of delivery where receipt can be verified.
- 36:02 The parties to this Agreement recognize the desirability for prompt resolution of grievances through an orderly process without stoppage of work or refusal to perform work.
- **36:03** A grievance is defined as a complaint in writing concerning:
  - (a) The application, interpretation or alleged violation of an Article of this Agreement, or a signed Memorandum of Understanding, or a signed Memorandum of Agreement between the parties.
  - (b) The dismissal, suspension, demotion or written reprimand of an employee.
- 36:04 Notwithstanding Section 36:03, an employee may grieve on any unsatisfactory working condition. The decision of the Executive Director shall be final for such grievances, and shall not be arbitrable.
- 36:05 If an employee or the Union fails to initiate or process a grievance within the prescribed time limits, the grievance will be deemed to be abandoned and all rights of recourse to the Grievance Procedure for that particular grievance shall be at an end. If the Employer fails to reply to a grievance within the prescribed time limits, the Union may process the grievance to arbitration. Either party may request an extension of the time limits providing such extension is requested prior to the expiry of the time allowed. An extension, if requested, shall not be unreasonably withheld.
- **36:06** Wherever possible, the grievance shall be presented on the Union Grievance Form. A written description of the nature of the grievance and the redress

requested shall be sufficiently clear and if the grievance relates to an Article of the Agreement, such Article shall be so stated in the grievance. The grievance shall be signed by the employee and may be clarified at any step providing its substance is not changed. Except for failure to meet the time limits, a grievance shall not be deemed to be invalid if it is not written on the Union Grievance Form or for failure to quote the Article in dispute.

- **36:07** Grievances concerning demotion, suspension, or dismissal shall be initiated within twenty (20) working days of the date that the employee became aware of the action.
- 36:08 An employee or the Union may withdraw a grievance at any time by giving written notice to the Employer. An employee may abandon a grievance by not processing it within the prescribed time limits.

#### **36:09** The Grievance Procedure shall be:

- (a) Within twenty (20) working days after the date upon which the employee was notified orally or in writing, or on which the employee first became aware of the action or circumstances given rise to the grievance, the employee shall present the grievance with redress requested to the Executive Director.
- (b) The Executive Director shall sign for receipt of the grievance and shall issue a decision in writing to the employee and to the Union within fifteen (15) working days.
- (c) The Executive Director may hold a hearing to discuss the grievance with the employee and **the employee's** representative before giving a decision on the grievance.
- (d) If the grievance is not resolved satisfactorily, the Union may refer the matter to Arbitration in accordance with Article **37** Arbitration Procedure.

# **36:10** The Policy Grievance Procedure shall be:

- (a) Where either party to this Agreement disputes the general application interpretation or alleged violation of an Article of this Agreement or a signed Memorandum of Understanding or a signed Memorandum of Agreement between the parties, either party may initiate a Policy Grievance. Where such a grievance is initiated by the Union it shall be presented to the Executive Director. Where such a grievance is initiated by the Employer it shall be presented to the President of the Union. In all cases the grievance shall be presented within twenty (20) working days from the date of the action giving rise to the grievance.
- (b) Where the parties fail to resolve a grievance under Article 36:10(a), either party may refer the grievance to Arbitration.

#### Article 37 Arbitration Procedure

- 37:01 Within twenty (20) working days from the receipt of the decision arising from the Grievance Procedure under Article 36:09 or 36:10, the Union shall notify the Employer in writing of its desire to submit the grievance to arbitration, and said notice shall contain the Union's nominee to the Arbitration Board.
- 37:02 Within twenty (20) working days from the receipt of the notice as provided in Article 37:01, the Employer shall notify the Union in writing of the Employer's nominee to the Arbitration Board.
- 37:03 Within ten (10) working days from the receipt of the notice as provided in Article 37:02 above, the two (2) nominees shall select a third member who shall be the Chairperson of the Arbitration Board.
- 37:04 If, in the event the two (2) nominees fail to agree upon a third member within the applicable time limits specified, the selection of a Chairperson may be referred to the Minister of Labour by either party.
- **37:05** The Arbitration Board shall render its decision in writing to the Union and the Employer.

- 37:06 Any of the time limits referred to above may be extended by mutual agreement of the parties hereto.
- 37:07 The decision of the majority shall be the decision of the Board and such decision shall be final and binding on both parties. Where there is no majority decision, the decision of the Chairperson shall be the decision of the Board.
- 37:08 The Board shall not have the authority to amend, add to, or in any manner change the provisions of this Agreement or any signed Memorandum of Agreement between the parties.
- 37:09 Each party shall bear the expenses of their nominee to the Board and shall bear equally the expenses of the Chairperson of the Board.
- 37:10 Nothing herein shall prohibit the parties from agreeing on a single arbitrator. If the parties so agree, the provisions of this Article relating to an Arbitration Board shall apply, mutatis mutandis, to the single arbitrator.
- 37:11 By mutual agreement between the parties, the grievance matter may be referred to a mediator chosen by the parties or the parties may appoint the single arbitrator, chosen in accordance with Article 37:10, as a mediator/arbitrator. If referred to a mediator, the arbitration hearing date shall be independent of the mediation process. The mediation must be completed prior to the commencement of the arbitration. If the single arbitrator is appointed as a mediator/arbitrator, the matter shall be heard as a mediation/arbitration.

# Article 38 Contracting Out

- 38:01 The Employer will give all reasonable consideration to continued employment of the employees who would otherwise become redundant because work is contracted out.
- 38:02 Where work is to be contracted out which would result in the redundancy of employees in the bargaining unit, then the following procedure shall apply:

- (a) The Employer will provide the Union with one hundred and twenty (120) days' notice;
- (b) During the notice period the parties shall meet to facilitate potential retraining and/or redeployment opportunities.

## Article 39 Technological Change

- **39:01** Sections 83 through 85 inclusive of The Labour Relations Act shall not apply during the term of this Agreement.
- 39:02 The Employer agrees that it will endeavour to introduce technological change in a manner which, where possible, will minimize the disruptive effects on its employees.
- 39:03 For purposes of this Article, technological change means the introduction into the Employers' operation of new equipment or materials, which shall affect the security of employment of a significant number of employees.
- 39:04 Where the Employer intends to introduce technological change, the following procedure will be followed:
  - (a) The Employer will provide the Union with ninety (90) days' notice prior to the date the change is to be effective;
  - (b) During this period, the parties will meet to discuss the steps to be taken to assist the employees who could be affected.

# Article 40 Change of Work Headquarters

40:01 Where, as a result of a reorganization an employee's work headquarters is moved from one city or town to another city or town requiring a change of residence by the employee, the employee shall be given notice of the move ninety (90) days in advance of the date upon which the move of the employee is to be affected. Such notice shall be provided in writing to the employee by the Employer.

- 40:02 Where an employee has accepted relocation involving a change in residence by the employee, the employee shall be reimbursed for expenses incurred due to the relocation in accordance with existing policy respecting "Relocation Expenses" in the General Manual of Administration (Province of Manitoba).
- 40:03 Where such notice has been given and the employee is unable to relocate, every reasonable effort will be made to place the employee in another suitable position within the bargaining unit.
- 40:04 Where an employee with one (1) or more years of continuous service is unable to relocate, the employee shall be subject to layoff. If the employee has not been offered another suitable position within one (1) year from the date of layoff the employee shall be permanently laid off and shall receive severance pay in accordance with Article 42 Severance Pay.
- 40:05 For purposes of interpretation of this Article, where the term "suitable position" is used it means a position which the employee is reasonable qualified for and able to perform and which is in a location that would not require a change of residence by the employee.

# Article 41 Layoff

- 41:01 Where by reason of a shortage of work or funds, or the abolition of a position or material changes in duties or organization, the Employer determines that a layoff(s) is necessary, the Employer shall determine the classification(s) from which the layoff(s) are to take place.
- 41:02 The Employer shall determine the group of employees concerned within the classification from which employees are to be laid off.
- 41:03 In determining the order of layoff, seniority shall be the determining factor provided the qualifications of the employees are relatively equal. This Section is subject to the requirement that the employees who are retained must have the qualifications and ability to perform the duties, which the remaining employees will be required to perform.

- An employee who is to be laid off and who elects to exercise the employee's displacement option may displace the most junior employee in the employee's current classification subject to the following:
  - (a) The employee may only decline the displacement opportunity if the position is in a location which would require a change of residence of the employee;
  - (b) If the employee declines the displacement opportunity under Subsection (a), the employee may then elect to displace the next most junior employee in the classification;
  - (c) The process will continue in this manner until the employee is able to displace an employee in the classification or there are no displacement opportunities;
  - (d) An employee who is displaced and is to be laid off and who elects to exercise the employee's displacement option may displace the most junior employee in the employee's current classification in accordance with the process in this Section.
- 41:05 An employee who is to be laid off and who has no displacement option within the employee's classification as a result of Subsection 41:04, may elect to displace the most junior employee in another classification which has the same or lower maximum rate of pay. The employee must have the qualifications and ability to perform the duties which the remaining employees will be required to perform. For this purpose, the rate of pay will be based on the bi-weekly rate of pay in the pay plan. The displacement process in that classification will follow the provisions of Section 41:04.
- 41:06 Notwithstanding the process required in Sections 41:04 and 41:05, the effective date of the layoff will not change from that initially provided to the employee. The parties agree to take any steps necessary to expedite the process to ensure that an employee who is to be laid off as a result of the displacement process, receives as much notice as possible. As a result,

- employees who elect to exercise their displacement rights must participate in and cooperate fully with the process or forfeit their displacement right.
- 41:07 Where the layoff(s) of employee(s) is necessary, the Employer shall provide the Union with written notice not less than forty (40) days prior to the date of layoff(s). The parties shall then meet to discuss the steps to be taken to assist the employees affected.
- 41:08 Where the Employer is laying off an employee, four (4) weeks' notice of layoff or pay in lieu thereof will be provided.
- **41:09** The Union will be provided a copy of layoff notices issued.
- 41:10 Where employees have been laid off, the Employer shall not use casual employees to do the work of the laid off employees except:
  - (a) Where the laid off employees are not available for work; or
  - (b) In emergency situations.
- 41:11 Where an employee alleges that the employee's layoff has not been in accordance with this Agreement, Article 36 Grievance Procedure set forth in this Agreement shall apply.
- 41:12 For purposes of this Article, "qualifications" refers to education, knowledge, training, skills, experience, aptitude and competence. "Ability" refers to mental and physical capability. The Employer, in making a decision with respect to determining which employees are to be retained and which employees are to be laid off, shall determine qualifications, and the ability of employees to perform the duties which the remaining employees will be required to perform, in a fair, reasonable and non-discriminatory manner. The onus of proof rests with the Employer in any dispute over the application of qualifications and ability to perform the duties, which the remaining employees will be required to perform.
- 41:13 Employees who are laid off shall be placed on a re-employment list for a period of twelve (12) months from the effective date of the layoff. Seniority,

- service and other benefits do not accrue while on lay off, or while on the reemployment list.
- 41:14 The Employer shall maintain a re-employment list for all employees covered by this Article who are laid off on other than a temporary basis. A copy will be provided to the Union on request.
- 41:15 Employees who are placed on a re-employment list shall be called back to their positions in reverse order of layoff in the classification from which the employee was laid off.
- 41:16 An employee who is on the re-employment list must:
  - (a) Report in writing any change of address to the Employer without delay;
  - (b) If called back, respond to the call-back within seven (7) days of receipt of notification of call-back. Notice of recall shall be made by registered mail to the last known address filed by the employee;
  - (c) Return to work within fourteen (14) days of receipt of notification of call-back or such other date as may be agreed upon between the employee and the Employer;
  - (d) Except for good and sufficient reasons, accept a call-back in accordance with this Article or be deemed to have resigned.
- 41:17 Employees on a re-employment list may be offered re-employment to other positions within the bargaining unit.
- 41:18 By written agreement, the employee may elect to terminate and receive Severance Pay, as provided in Article 42 at the time of layoff and thus waive their right to be placed on the reemployment list. An employee may, while on the re-employment list, opt to terminate their employment permanently and receive Severance Pay as provided in Article 42.

In any case, the employee shall automatically be terminated after twelve (12) months of continuous layoff at which time the employee will be paid any Severance Pay to which the employee is entitled.

#### Article 42 Severance

- 42:01 Employees with nine (9) or more years of accumulated service whose services are terminated as a result of retirement in accordance with the provisions of The Civil Service Superannuation Act, or death, shall be paid, or to the employee's estate in the event of death, severance pay in the amount of one (1) week's pay for each complete year of accumulated service or portion thereof, but the total amount of severance pay under this Section shall not exceed fifteen (15) weeks' pay. Example: ten (10) years, eight (8) complete months of accumulated service equals ten and eight-twelfths (10 8/12) years of accumulated service for purposes of calculation.
- 42:02 Where an employee in the employee's ninth (9th) year of accumulated service fails to complete nine (9) years' accumulated service as a result of retirement in accordance with the provisions of The Civil Service Superannuation Act, the employee shall be paid severance pay on the basis of nine (9) weeks' pay multiplied by the factor of the number of complete months service completed in the employee's ninth (9th) year divided by twelve (12) months.
- **42:03** In addition to the severance pay set out in Section :01, employees who retire in accordance with the provisions of The Civil Service Superannuation Act will also be eligible for the following severance pay:
  - (a) For employees with twenty (20) or more years of accumulated service, an additional two (2) weeks' pay;
  - (b) For employees with twenty-five (25) or more years of accumulated service, two (2) weeks' pay in addition to the amount in Subsection (a);
  - (c) For employees with thirty (30) or more years of accumulated service, two (2) weeks' pay in addition to the amount in Subsections (a) and (b);
  - (d) For employees with thirty-five (35) or more years of accumulated service, two (2) weeks' pay in addition to the amounts in Subsections (a), (b) and (c).

- 42:04 In the case of employees with nine (9) or more years of accumulated service whose services are terminated as a result of death, the employee's estate shall be paid severance pay in the amount of one (1) week's pay for each complete year of continuous employment or portion thereof, but the total amount of severance pay shall not exceed fifteen (15) weeks' pay. Example: ten (10) years, eight (8) complete months of accumulated service equals ten and eight-twelfths (10 8/12) years of continuous service for purposes of calculation.
- 42:05 Where an employee in the employee's ninth (9th) year of accumulated service fails to complete nine (9) years' accumulated service as a result of death, the employee's estate shall be paid severance pay on the basis of nine (9) weeks' pay multiplied by the factor of the number of complete months service completed in the employee's ninth (9th) year divided by twelve (12) months.
- 42:06 Employees with one (1) or more years of accumulated service whose services are terminated as a result of permanent lay-off, shall be paid severance pay in the amount of one (1) week's pay for each complete year of continuous employment or portion thereof, but the total amount of severance pay shall not exceed twenty-six (26) weeks' pay.
- 42:07 Where an employee in the employee's first (1st) year of accumulated service fails to complete one (1) year's accumulated service as a result of permanent lay-off, the employee shall be paid severance pay on the basis of one (1) week's pay multiplied by the factor of the number of complete months service completed in the employee's first (1st) year divided by twelve (12) months.
- An employee who is eligible to receive severance pay in accordance with this Article may elect to receive the severance pay in two relatively equal payments provided both payments occur within the same fiscal year as the effective date of the retirement or permanent lay-off. In the case of severance payable on permanent lay-off, this provision only applies if the employee immediately elects permanent lay-off upon receiving notice of lay-off and waives the right to be placed on the re-employment list, or once placed on the re-employment list, opts to be removed from the list in favour of permanent layoff.

42:09 The rate of pay referred to in this Article shall be determined on the basis of the last regular bi-weekly rate of pay, excluding allowances, which was in effect for the employee at the time of retirement, permanent lay-off, or death.

## Article 43 Resignations and Abandonment of Position

- 43:01 Employees resigning shall provide the Employer with a written notice of resignation which shall specify the last day upon which the employee will perform **their** regular duties.
- 43:02 The effective date of a resignation shall be the last day upon which an employee is present at work and performs their regular duties.
- 43:03 Where the last day on which an employee who has submitted a notice of resignation performs **their** regular duties precedes a Friday, which but for the fact that a holiday falls thereon would be a regular working day, the employee shall be deemed to have voluntarily terminated **their** service on that Friday and shall be eligible for holiday pay for that Friday.
- 43:04 Employees shall give written notice of resignation at least two (2) weeks prior to the date on which the resignation is to be effective. Notice of resignation shorter than the required two (2) weeks may only be given with the approval of the Employer.
- 43:05 An employee may, with the approval of the Employer, withdraw the notice of resignation at any time before the resignation becomes effective.
- 43:06 The employee agrees to return all equipment, keys, identification and materials belonging to the Employer prior to or at the termination date.
- 43:07 Notwithstanding Article 43:01 and 43:02, an employee who is retiring in accordance with the provisions of the Civil Service Superannuation Act, may, with the approval of the Employer, be permitted to utilize paid leave in the form of vacation or banked time to be taken immediately prior to the employee's retirement date. In this circumstance, the

- effective date of resignation shall be deemed to be the last day of the employee's paid leave.
- 43:08 Where an employee is absent without leave for a period of three (3) consecutive days, the employee shall be considered to have abandoned their position and shall be deemed to have resigned without notice on the last day on which the employee was present at work and performed their regular duties. Extenuating circumstances will be considered by the Employer.

## Article 44 Use of Privately Owned Vehicles for Employer Business

44:01 The Employer will reimburse an employee for use of their privately owned vehicles for travel on Employer business when authorized by the employee's Manager. The employee will be paid at the current kilometre rates periodically established by the Province of Manitoba, which are included within Appendix "E" of the Government Employees' Master Agreement. This information is contained on the Employer's Intranet. The kilometre rate allowance as established by the Province of Manitoba covers all costs relative to the operation of the vehicle. Employees when called back to work in any emergency will be reimbursed for mileage for a personal vehicle used to travel to and from work.

# Article 45 Meals and Miscellaneous Expenses

45:01 Employees shall be eligible for meals and miscellaneous expenses as per Appendix "F" of the Government Employees' Master Agreement, the details of which shall be posted in the workplace. This information is contained on the Employer's Intranet.

# Article 46 Travel out of Province/Country

Where an employee is required to travel outside the Province of Manitoba or outside of Canada on Employer business, reasonable receipted expenses will be reimbursed by the Employer.

## Article 47 Stand-By

- 47:01 An employee, who has been designated by the Employer or authorized supervisor to be available on stand-by during off duty hours on a regular working day, shall be entitled to payment for each eight (8) hour period of twenty dollars (\$20.00).
- 47:02 For stand-by on a day of rest or on a paid holiday that is not a working day, the payment for each eight (8) hour period shall be twenty-three dollars (\$23.00).
- 47:03 To be eligible for stand-by payment, an employee designated for stand-by duty must be available during the period of stand-by at a known telephone number or by another method of communication as mutually agreed between the supervisor and the employee, and must be available to return for duty as quickly as possible if called.
- 47:04 The stand-by payment includes the responsibility to respond to phone calls and other forms of electronic communications which do not involve a return to work. If such calls individually or in total exceed one-half (½) hour, the employee is entitled to claim overtime for the period beyond one-half (½) hour at the applicable overtime rate. The provisions respecting minimum call out do not apply in these circumstances.
- 47:05 An employee on stand-by who is called back to work shall be compensated in accordance with call-out provisions of the applicable overtime Article in addition to stand-by pay.

#### Article 48 Dental Plan

- **48:01** The parties agree to the continuation of the Dental Services Plan with the following changes:
  - (a) The current Manitoba Dental Association (MDA) Fee Guide shall be in effect on April 1<sup>st</sup> of each year.

- (b) Dental coverage will continue for the first seventeen (17) weeks of Maternity Leave;
- (c) The annual maximum per claimant is one thousand four hundred and seventy-five dollars (\$1,475);
- (d) The orthodontic lifetime maximum is one thousand six hundred and seventy-five dollars (\$1,675);
- (e) Part-time employees are eligible for family coverage based on fifty percent (50%) of the annual maximum per claimant identified in 48:01 (c) and (d) above.

### Article 49 Vision Care Plan

- **49:01** The parties agree to the continuation of the Vision Care Plan with the following changes:
  - (a) Changes to the Dental Plan respecting eligibility during Maternity Leave will also apply to the Vision Care Plan;
  - (b) The maximum per claimant is two hundred and seventy-five dollars (\$275.00).
  - (c) Part-time employees are eligible for family coverage based on fifty percent (50%) of the annual maximum per claimant identified in Article 49:01(b) above.

## Article 50 Group Life Insurance Plan

50:01 All employees covered by this Agreement shall be eligible to participate in the Government Employees' Master Agreement Group Life, Dependent Life and Accidental Death and Dismemberment Insurance Plans.

## Article 51 Ambulance and Hospital Semi-Private Plan

- 51:01 The Employer will continue the Ambulance and Hospital Semi-Private Plan (AHSP) for all employees in accordance with the following:
  - (a) Premiums will be paid by the Employer;
  - (b) Contents of the Plan shall be the same as that of the employees included in the Government Employees' Master Agreement and altered identically when changes are made;
  - (c) Eligibility requirements will be the same as those in effect for the Dental Services Plan.

## Article 52 Drug Plan

- **52:01** The Employer will continue the Drug Care Plan in accordance with the following:
  - (a) Eligibility requirements for employees and dependants will be the same as the Dental Services Plan;
  - (b) Co-insurance will be based on eighty percent (80%) reimbursement;
  - (c) The maximum payment per contract (family) will be eight hundred dollars (\$800.00) per year;
  - (d) Part-time employees are eligible for family coverage based on fifty percent (50%) of the annual maximum per claimant identified in 52:01 (c) above.

## Article 53 Pay Plan Amendments

53:01 Where the Employer establishes or proposes to establish a new classification within the bargaining unit, the Union shall be notified. The parties shall commence negotiations on the appropriate salary for the new classification without undue delay. The application of this clause shall not be deemed to constitute the reopening of this Agreement.

- 53:02 Where the parties fail to agree on an appropriate salary for the new classification the matter may be referred to arbitration in accordance with Article 37 Arbitration Procedure. The Arbitration Board shall be expressly confined to the sole issue of determining the salary for the new classification.
- 53:03 Where a dispute arises whether a new classification should or should not be included within the scope of this Agreement, the dispute may be referred to the Manitoba Labour Board for a ruling.

## **Article 54** Retroactive Wages

- 54:01 Retroactive pay adjustments for the period between the expiration of the previous Agreement and the date of the signing of this Agreement shall apply to:
  - (a) Employees who are in the employ of the Employer on the date of the signing of this Agreement;
  - (b) Employees who have left the service during the above-mentioned period but who have retired in accordance with the provisions of The Civil Service Superannuation Act or who have died in service;
  - (c) Employees who have left the service during the above-mentioned period by reason of being laid off by the Employer; and
  - (d) Employees who have voluntarily terminated their services (resigned).

#### Article 55 Devolution and Transfer of Services

55:01 In the event of the devolution and transfer of services provided by employees covered by this Agreement to a Crown Corporation, Board, Agency, Authority or other entity established by government, the Union shall be notified no less than four (4) months prior to the transfer of employees. The parties will establish a joint committee to facilitate the orderly transfer of employees who are impacted.

- 55:02 Where the successorship provisions of the Labour Relations Act have been determined to apply, the provisions of this Agreement continue in effect for the affected employees until the expiry of this Agreement.
- 55:03 The Employer and the Union will work together with the successor employer to negotiate a transition agreement respecting the administration and interpretation of this Agreement during the period required to negotiate a new collective agreement.
- 55:04 The Employer will make reasonable efforts and give priority consideration to obtaining employment opportunities:
  - (a) With the new employer for employees who are not being transferred; and
  - (b) Within the **Liquor, Gaming and Cannabis Authority of Manitoba** for employees who do not wish to transfer to the new employer.
- 55:05 Sections :02 and :03 do not apply to devolution and transfers to other levels of governments.
- **55:06** The provisions of this Article do not apply to secondment of employees.

# Article 56 Long Term Disability Income Plan

56:01 The parties agree to the continuation of the existing Employer-paid Longterm Disability Income Plan for all employees covered by this Agreement.

#### Article 57 Remoteness Allowance

57:01 Employees shall be eligible for remoteness allowance as per Appendix "B" of the Government Employees' Master Agreement, the details of which shall be posted in the workplace. This information is contained on the Employer's Intranet.

## Article 58 Carry Over of Vacation Credits Upon Retirement

- 58:01 Effective date of signing for the purpose of carryover of vacation credits to retirement as provided for under the Civil Service Superannuation Act and regulations, subject to any changes therein, an employee covered by this Collective Agreement shall be allowed to bank up to fifty (50) days' vacation credits. The banking of vacation credits to commence up to five (5) years prior to the employee's retirement date. The following conditions apply regarding carry-over of vacation:
  - (a) An employee has provided a specific retirement date in writing to the Employer.
  - (b) An employee may add to the bank a maximum of one (1) years' vacation credits per year.
  - (c) The combined total of carry-over and earned vacation credits to be cashed out in the retirement year at retirement must not exceed fifty (50) days in total.
  - (d) Should the employee change or extend their intended retirement date, they shall notify the Employer in writing, and may be required to reduce their accumulated pre-retirement vacation leave credits.

# Article 59 Employee Requested Education/Training

- An employee may request a course, training, conference, or course of study, related to their duties. The Employer at its sole discretion may reimburse the Employee for any of the following; tuition, books, travel costs (airfare) and necessary supplies or other costs, subject to the following:
  - (a) Prior to the employee enrolling, the Employer has provided confirmation of its consent in writing that it shall provide such reimbursement for such costs it deems suitable.
  - (b) The employee provides evidence of successful completion of, and attendance at, the course, conference or training by submission of

- confirmation of a passing grade where applicable, or certification of attendance, and applicable receipts. The Employer will only reimburse the employee for the costs specifically designated and pre-approved by the Employer in writing, and determined by the Employer as being required.
- (c) Employees shall suffer no loss of regular pay while attending such education/training. Such course or training time which occurs outside the employee's scheduled hours of work are not eligible for pay. In addition, the Employer and employee may agree upon schedule modification to facilitate approval for such requests.

## Article 60 Employer Assigned Education/Training

- 60:01 Where the Employer assigns an Employee to any course, conference or training, the Employee shall receive regular pay and benefits. The Employer shall also pay for associated expenses including, tuition, books, and any necessary supplies.
- 60:02 Subject to Article 60:03 attendance to any such course, conference, training and all associated travel, shall be considered part of the Employee's regular tour of duty. Where travel is required and approved by the Employer to or from such assignment on a day of rest, overtime rates shall apply.
- 60:03 The Employer may change or modify previously scheduled hours of work or days of rest, in order to ensure that the course, conference training, or associated travel falls within the amount of regular hours of work as proscribed for a bi weekly period (72.5 hours). Wherever possible (e.g. does not conflict with other Articles of Collective Agreement, last minute events), such notice shall be provided at least two (2) weeks in advance of any such change or modification.
- 60:04 Should a change or modification of schedule be required as above, for a course, conference or training of longer duration, the Employer will make reasonable effort to ensure that an Employee receive no less than the

regularly entitled days of rest within a 2 week period, and the days of rest shall be at least two (2) consecutive days in duration within said two (2) week period.

- 60:05 Should the Employer at its discretion authorize additional hours of work for the purpose of training, attendance to a conference, course or related travel beyond the employee's regular amount of biweekly hours, then applicable overtime rates will apply. Should an employee based on the formal program anticipate that overtime may be required, the employee shall seek prior authorization for such overtime.
- 60:06 For the purposes of training, courses, conferences or other duties required outside Employees' normal jurisdiction of work location, employees shall be eligible, where applicable, for;
  - (a) Meal and miscellaneous expenses as per Article 45 and/or Article 46.
  - (b) Transportation expenses for Privately Owned Vehicles as per Article 44.
- 60:07 Where an Employee is engaged in training, courses, conferences or other duties as assigned by the Employer outside the Province of Manitoba, in addition to the provisions above, the following shall apply;
  - (a) Wherein an employee is engaged outside of the Province the duration of which may exceed the Employee's regular scheduled work week and continue following **the employee's** days of rest, the Employer may, at its sole discretion, permit the employee to return home for those rest days. In such case, the Employee shall be reimbursed travel expenses in an amount not exceeding the cost of maintaining the employee outside the jurisdiction for said days of rest.

## Article 61 Civil Service Superannuation Fund

All employees covered by this Agreement will participate in the Civil Service Superannuation Fund **upon meeting the eligibility requirements under the plan.** 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF A representative of the Liquor, Gaming and Cannabis Authority of Manitoba has hereunto set their hand for, and a Staff Representative of Manitoba Government and General Employees' Union has set their hand for, and on behalf of, Manitoba Government and General Employees' Union.

| Signed this <u>26<sup>th</sup></u> day of <u>Septem</u> | , 2022.                             |
|---|-------------------------------------|
| Mulos   | The                                 |
| On Behalf of Liquor, Gaming and Cannabis                | On Behalf of Manitoba Government    |
| Authority of Manitoba                                   | and General Employees' Union        |
| 989   | Allhum                              |
| On Behalf of Liquor, Gaming and Cannabis                | On Behalf of the Manitoba Governmen |
| Authority of Manitoba                                   | and General Employees' Union        |
|   | Dave Brills                         |
|   | On Behalf of Manitoby Government    |
|   | and General Employees' Union        |
|   |                                     |
|   | On Behalf of Manitoba Government    |
|   | and General Employees' Union        |

## Appendix "A" Exclusion from the Terms of the Agreement

The bargaining unit shall comprise all employees as defined in this Agreement except those employees in positions mutually agreed to between the parties as managerial and/or confidential exclusions as listed below:

Guidelines to be considered in negotiating exclusions shall be:

- 1. Positions and incumbents employed for the primary purpose of exercising executive management functions;
- 2. Positions and incumbents employed in a confidential capacity in matters relating to labour relations.
- 3. The exclusion of incumbents of new positions established by the Employer shall be determined by mutual agreement unless the position is excluded from the Agreement by a ruling of the Manitoba Labour Board.

Positions excluded from the Collective Agreement

- Executive Director and CEO
- Directors
- Executive Assistant
- Managers
- Human Resources Associate
- Human Resources Consultant
- Human Resources Recruitment and Training Coordinator
- Human Resources Administrator
- Supervisors
- Pay and Benefits Consultant
- Students

## Appendix "B" Casual Employees

The applicable provisions of this Agreement, with respect to Casual Employees, shall apply effective the commencement of employment.

Casual Employees shall be subject to a period of probation of twelve (12) months from the date of the commencement of employment. A casual employee who is rejected during the probation period may appeal the rejection to the Executive Director within twenty (20) working days from the date the casual employee received notice of the rejection. Should such an appeal be filed, the Executive Director shall hold a hearing to discuss the rejection with the employee. The employee has the option to have a representative present. The decision of the Executive Director shall be final for such an appeal and the decision is not arbitrable.

Management will determine whether an employee is casual in accordance with the definition of casual employee as contained herein.

- 1:01 The only provisions of this Agreement which apply to casual employees are as follows:
  - Article 2 Definitions
  - Article 3 Recognition
  - Article 4 Management Rights
  - Article 5 Union Security
  - Article 9 No Discrimination
  - Article 10 Harassment
  - Article 11 Civil Liability
  - Article 21 Statutory Holidays

Provisions respecting 1½ x for time worked on the listed holidays only. All other provisions in accordance with Employment Standards Act

- Article 34 Employee File
- Article 35 Disciplinary Action
- Article 36 Grievance Procedure limited to the provisions in this Article
- Article 37 Grievance-Arbitration Procedure limited to the provisions of this Article
- Vacation pay as per employment standards code
- Pay scale as per Auxiliary Inspector pay scale

#### 2:01 Overtime and hours of work for casuals

- (a) Daily overtime is only payable when the employee has worked beyond the normal daily hours for that classification, i.e. seven and one-quarter (71/4) hours.
- (b) Overtime on a day of rest is only payable when an employee has worked at least five (5) days in a week, i.e. a casual employee only has two (2) "days of rest" per week;
- (c) Certain shift configurations may require working more than five (5) days per week without payment of overtime.
- 2:02 There is no obligation for the employing authority to offer work to a casual employee. The Employer shall determine configurations of hours of work and shifts.
- 2:03 A casual employee who has not worked for a period of forty-five (45) calendar days may be terminated at the sole discretion of the Employer.

#### Conversions

3:01 A part time or full time employee who is converted to casual is no longer covered by the provisions of the collective agreement except for those relating to casual employees.

- 3:02 A casual employee who is converted to part time or full time status must complete the service requirement as set out but receives no credit for calendar or accumulated service as a casual employee.
- 3:03 Where a part time or full time employee who has been covered by the collective agreement has been converted to casual employment and is subsequently reconverted to part time or full time employment with no break in service, the period of casual employment shall be treated as a period of leave of absence. While this does not affect the continuity of employment, the period of casual employment does not count as calendar or accumulated service for purposes of seniority or benefit determination.

#### between

#### Liquor, Gaming and Cannabis Authority of Manitoba

#### and

## Manitoba Government and General Employees' Union

## Re: Pro-Rating Factor

The pro-rating factor shall be the agreed method of calculating a benefit where an employee works part-time hours. Pro-rating factor shall be calculated as follows:

# Regularly Scheduled Hours in the Preceding <u>Two (2) Full Bi-weekly Pay Periods</u> 145

- e.g. Holiday calculation:
- (i) Holiday shall be deemed to fall in the third full bi-weekly pay period.
- (ii) Calculate regularly scheduled hours in the preceding two (2) full bi-weekly pay periods.
- (iii) Divide number arrived at in (ii) by 145.
- (iv) Multiply seven and one-quarter (7 1/4) hours times the pro-rating factor arrived at in (iii) to determine the employee's entitlement.

Signed this 26 day of September , 2022.

On Behalf of Liquor, Gaming and Cannabis Authority of Manitoba

#### between

#### Liquor, Gaming and Cannabis Authority of Manitoba

#### and

## Manitoba Government and General Employees' Union

#### Re: Employment Equity

The parties acknowledge and endorse the principle of Employment Equity. The four designated groups are Women, **Indigenous** Peoples, Persons with a Disability and Visible Minorities. Should these groups change, this Memorandum will be amended accordingly. In factoring Employment Equity into the Recruitment and Appointment process, the following principles shall apply:

- 1. Employment Equity shall be applied as a factor in competitions for which there is inadequate representation of one or more of the four underrepresented groups for which there is a bone fide organizational need.
- 2. The weighting afforded Employment Equity shall be no greater than that applied to the highest weighted criterion.
- 3. The rating applied to Equity candidates shall be the same as that applied to the "meets standard" rating for the essential selection criteria.
- 4. Employment Equity candidates must be qualified in all other essential selection criteria.
- 5. The rating for Employment Equity shall be applied only once in the selection process.

Signed this day of <u>September</u>, 2022.

On Behalf of Liquor, Gaming and Cannabis
Authority of Manitoba

#### between

#### Liquor, Gaming and Cannabis Authority of Manitoba

#### and

#### Manitoba Government and General Employees' Union

#### Re: Health Spending Account

The Employer agrees to continue to provide a Health Spending Account for permanent full and part-time employees within the following parameters:

- The Health Spending Account (HSA) is applicable to claims for allowable expenses (as determined by the account plan) incurred during the plan year. The plan year runs from January 1st to December 31st.
- Effective March 21, 2014, and applicable to permanent full and part-time employees on staff as of March 21, 2014, maximum claims shall be increased to six hundred dollars (\$600.00)/year per full-time employee and three hundred dollars (\$300.00)/year per part-time employee.
- There is no carryover of HSA dollars from one (1) year to the next, but an employee can carry forward claims for up to one (1) year, i.e. a full-time employee had one-hundred fifty dollars (\$150.00) in claims in the first year. The employee can claim the one-hundred twenty dollars (\$120.00) and carry forward the additional thirty dollars (\$30.00) in claims for up to one (1) year.
- Employees can apply for reimbursement once claims total one-hundred dollars (\$100.00) for full-time employees and sixty dollars (\$60.00) for part-time employees (i.e. the "trigger point").
- If your claims have been submitted and do not exceed the one hundred dollars (\$100) or sixty dollars (\$60.00) in eligible expenses, your eligible balance will be paid out at the end of the run off period (ninety [90] days following the end of the calendar year). Any prior years credits remaining after the run off period will be forfeited.

- Reimbursement for claims is once every two (2) months.
- An employee must file a claim.
- Employees are to receive annual statements.
- The plan shall use Canada Revenue Agency's definition of dependent (i.e. an employee can pay HSA eligible expenses for anyone for whom they can claim a tax deduction).
- Plan coverage and administration is to be determined by the Employer.

| Signed this | 26 | _ day of <u>September</u>               |     | , 2022. |
|-------------|----|---|-----|---------|
|             |    | W - W - W - W - W - W - W - W - W - W - |     |         |
| V 200       |    |   | , , |         |

On Behalf of Liquor, Gaming and Cannabis Authority of Manitoba

#### between

#### Liquor, Gaming and Cannabis Authority of Manitoba

#### and

## Manitoba Government and General Employees' Union

## Re: Full time Employees Retiree Health Care Spending Account

The Employer agrees to provide a Retiree Health Care Spending Account in the amount of five hundred dollars (\$500.00) per benefit year for those full time legacy MLCC employees transitioned to LGA on April 1st 2014, who retire in accordance with the Civil Service Superannuation Act on or after the date of signing.

Bilyk, David
Caron, Michael
Basset, Kathy
Dumont, Brucie
Boulet, Lurdes
Guay, Keith
Kathler, David
Kreutzer, Lori
Laarveld, Christine
Marrese, Rebecca
Miller, Shannon
O'Reilly, Elaine
Salway, Monica

Signed this day of September , 2022.

On Behalf of Liquor, Gaming and Cannabis Authority of Manitoba

#### between

#### Liquor, Gaming and Cannabis Authority of Manitoba

#### and

## Manitoba Government and General Employees' Union

#### Re: Employer Vehicles - Personal Use Rates

It is hereby agreed and understood that the current personal use charge and mileage allowance shall be:

Biweekly rate (effective date of signing) - \$45.00

Annual Mileage Allowance:

- The annual personal mileage allowance shall be 11,000 kilometres for each year during the life of the agreement.
- Surcharge rate for mileage in excess of above mileage allowance shall be
  the same rate as paid by the Employer to employees who use their
  personal vehicles for business purposes and as may be amended from
  time to time.

Signed this day of <u>September</u>, 2022

On Behalf of Liquor, Gaming and Cannabis Authority of Manitoba

#### between

## Liquor, Gaming and Cannabis Authority of Manitoba

#### and

## Manitoba Government and General Employees' Union

## Re: Voluntary Reduced Work Week Program

The Union agrees to provide a letter, outside the Collective Agreement, regarding the Voluntary Reduced Work Week Program. The contents of this letter will be consistent with that of the letter from the Union to the Province under the Government Employees' Master Agreement.

| Signed this 26 day of Septem             | bev, 2022.                       |
|--|----------------------------------|
| * Indul/                                 |                                  |
| On Behalf of Liquor, Gaming and Cannabis | On Behalf of Manitoba Government |
| Authority of Manitoba                    | and General Employees' Union     |

#### between

## Liquor, Gaming and Cannabis Authority of Manitoba

#### and

## Manitoba Government and General Employees' Union

## Re: Long Term Disability Income Plan

The carrier and terms for basic coverage under the Long-term Disability Income Plan can be found on the Employer's Intranet.

Signed this day of September, 2022.

On Behalf of Liquor, Gaming and Cannabis Authority of Manitoba

#### between

## Liquor, Gaming and Cannabis Authority of Manitoba

#### and

## Manitoba Government and General Employees' Union

## Re: Competencies

The competencies for all classifications will be posted on the Employer's Intranet within the life of this Agreement.

Signed this day of September, 2022.

On Behalf of Liquor, Gaming and Cannabis Authority of Manitoba

#### between

#### Liquor, Gaming and Cannabis Authority of Manitoba

#### and

## Manitoba Government and General Employees' Union

#### Re: Shift Schedule Language

The Parties agree to refer this subject to the Labour Management Committee. The Labour Management Committee will examine the current shift scheduling practices and determine if it is possible to create a schedule which will reduce the number of "nights" weeks to a target of twelve (12) per year per employee and reduce the number of long weekends to two (2) from the group that includes Victoria Day, Canada day, Terry Fox Day and Labour Day. Should such a schedule be feasible the parties agree to implement said schedule, with initial implementation on a trial period basis. The committee may make additional recommendations or changes subsequent to the trial period. The parties recognize the need to occasionally exceed the target amounts as a result of operational concerns. The committee shall make such a determination by December 1<sup>st</sup>, **2018** and make it effective January 1<sup>st</sup>, **2019**. The committee may unanimously agree to extend the timeline if required.

Signed this 26 day of September , 2022.

On Behalf of Liquor, Gaming and Cannabis Authority of Manitoba

#### between

#### Liquor, Gaming and Cannabis Authority of Manitoba

#### and

## Manitoba Government and General Employees' Union

#### **Re:** Severance for former MLCC Employees

For the employees listed below, the following shall apply should they retire in accordance with The Civil Service Superannuation Act following a period of employment contiguous with the date of the signing of this Memorandum (understood to include any approved leave of absence).

An employee whose services are terminated as a result of retirement in accordance with the Civil Service Superannuation Act, medical disability, permanent layoff, or death, shall receive retirement/termination allowance in the amount of one (1) week's pay at his/her then current salary for each complete year of continuous employment, up to a maximum of twenty-five (25) weeks.

Bilyk, David
Caron, Michael
Basset, Kathy
Dumont, Brucie
Boulet, Lurdes
Guay, Keith
Kathler, David
Kreutzer, Lori
Laarveld, Christine
Marrese, Rebecca
Mellum, Lisa

Marrese, Rebecca Mellum, Lisa Miller, Shannon O'Reilly, Elaine

Salway, Monica

| Signed this 26 day of Septem             | bev, 2022.                       |
|--|----------------------------------|
| On Behalf of Liquor, Gaming and Cannabis | On Behalf of Manitoba Government |
| Authority of Manitoba                    | and General Employees' Union     |

#### between

#### Liquor, Gaming and Cannabis Authority of Manitoba

#### and

## Manitoba Government and General Employees' Union

#### Re: Pharmaceutical Drug Coverage - Legacy MLCC Employees

The parties agree to establish additional pharmaceutical drug coverage for the transitioned legacy MLCC employees. The amount shall be sufficient to provide for the difference between the Group Health Plan Coverage and the individual employee's Pharmacare deductible. Premiums for this benefit shall continue to be paid by the Employer and participating eligible employees in the previous ratio of 85% / 15% respectively. The Employer agrees to remit and deduct such premiums to the carrier. The plan shall be administered in accordance with the terms and conditions of the carrier.

Signed this 26 day of September , 2022.

On Behalf of Liquor, Gaming and Cannabis Authority of Manitoba

#### between

## Liquor, Gaming and Cannabis Authority of Manitoba

#### and

## Manitoba Government and General Employees' Union

#### Re: Overtime Distribution

The Employer confirms their commitment to review the distribution of overtime to identify solutions to improve equitable distribution of overtime. The Employer will conduct this review within the life of this Collective Agreement and implement changes as identified and approved by the Employer. This memorandum expires at the expiration of this Collective Agreement (March 24, 2023).

| Signed this <u>26</u> day of <u>Septem</u> | bev, 2022.                       |
|--|----------------------------------|
| trolung                                    |                                  |
| On Behalf of Liquor, Gaming and Cannabis   | On Behalf of Manitoba Government |
| Authority of Manitoba                      | and General Employees' Union     |

Salary Schedule

# March 31, 2018 to March 29, 2019

|                                  | <u>1</u> | <u>2</u> | <u>3</u> | <u>4</u> | <u>5</u> | <u>6</u> | <u>7</u> | <u>8</u> | <u>9</u> | <u>10</u> |
|----------------------------------|----------|----------|----------|----------|----------|----------|----------|----------|----------|-----------|
| Administrative Assistant 1 (6A1) |          |          |          |          |          |          |          |          |          |           |
| Apr 1, 2017                      | 36,143   | 37,770   | 39,112   | 40,644   | 42,309   | 44,011   |          |          |          |           |
|                                  | 1,385.48 | 1,447.83 | 1,499.30 | 1,558.03 | 1,621.83 | 1,687.08 |          |          |          |           |
|                                  | 19.11    | 19.97    | 20.68    | 21.49    | 22.37    | 23.27    |          |          |          |           |
| Administrative Assistant 2 (6A4) |          |          |          |          |          |          |          |          |          |           |
| Apr 1, 2017                      | 41,250   | 42,327   | 43,519   | 44,730   | 45,921   | 47,150   |          |          |          |           |
|                                  | 1,581.23 | 1,622.55 | 1,668.23 | 1,714.63 | 1,760.30 | 1,807.43 |          |          |          |           |
|                                  | 21.81    | 22.38    | 23.01    | 23.65    | 24.28    | 24.93    |          |          |          |           |
| Auditor (6C1)                    |          |          |          |          |          |          |          |          |          |           |
| Apr 1, 2017                      | 54,451   | 56,512   | 58,441   | 60,635   | 62,905   | 65,288   |          |          |          |           |
|                                  | 2,087.28 | 2,166.30 | 2,240.25 | 2,324.35 | 2,411.35 | 2,502.70 |          |          |          |           |
|                                  | 28.79    | 29.88    | 30.90    | 32.06    | 33.26    | 34.52    |          |          |          |           |
| Clerk 3 (6D1)                    |          |          |          |          |          |          |          |          |          |           |
| Apr 1, 2017                      | 41,325   | 42,384   | 43,557   | 44,805   | 45,997   | 47,377   | 48,834   | 50,271   |          |           |
|                                  | 1,584.13 | 1,624.73 | 1,669.68 | 1,717.53 | 1,763.20 | 1,816.13 | 1,871.95 | 1,927.05 |          |           |
|                                  | 21.85    | 22.41    | 23.03    | 23.69    | 24.32    | 25.05    | 25.82    | 26.58    |          |           |
| Clerk 4 (6D3)                    |          |          |          |          |          |          |          |          |          |           |
| Apr 1, 2017                      | 48,512   | 49,723   | 51,027   | 52,314   | 53,846   | 55,264   |          |          |          |           |
|                                  | 1,859.63 | 1,906.03 | 1,956.05 | 2,005.35 | 2,064.08 | 2,118.45 |          |          |          |           |
|                                  | 25.65    | 26.29    | 26.98    | 27.66    | 28.47    | 29.22    |          |          |          |           |

| Information Technologist 1 (6T2) |          |          |          |          |          |          |          |          |
|----------------------------------|----------|----------|----------|----------|----------|----------|----------|----------|
| Apr 1, 2017                      | 60,995   | 63,245   | 65,534   | 67,974   | 70,489   | 73,269   | 76,068   | 78,962   |
|                                  | 2,338.13 | 2,424.40 | 2,512.13 | 2,605.65 | 2,702.08 | 2,808.65 | 2,915.95 | 3,026.88 |
|                                  | 32.25    | 33.44    | 34.65    | 35.94    | 37.27    | 38.74    | 40.22    | 41.75    |
| Information Technologist 2 (6IT) |          |          |          |          |          |          |          |          |
| Apr 1, 2017                      | 66,688   | 69,241   | 72,040   | 74,707   | 77,487   | 80,475   | 83,653   | 86,887   |
| • '                              | 2,556.35 | 2,654.23 | 2,761.53 | 2,863.75 | 2,970.33 | 3,084.88 | 3,206.68 | 3,330.65 |
|                                  | 35.26    | 36.61    | 38.09    | 39.50    | 40.97    | 42.55    | 44.23    | 45.94    |
| Information Technologist 3 (8T3) |          |          |          |          |          |          |          |          |
| Apr 1, 2017                      | 72,040   | 74,707   | 77,487   | 80,475   | 83,653   | 86,887   | 90,537   |          |
| • '                              | 2,761.53 | 2,863.75 | 2,970.33 | 3,084.88 | 3,206.68 | 3,330.65 | 3,470.58 |          |
|                                  | 38.09    | 39.50    | 40.97    | 42.55    | 44.23    | 45.94    | 47.87    |          |
| Inspector 1 (6E1)                |          |          |          |          |          |          |          |          |
| Apr 1, 2017                      | 50,328   | 52,673   | 55,113   | 57,590   | 60,219   | 62,962   |          |          |
|                                  | 1,929.23 | 2,019.13 | 2,112.65 | 2,207.63 | 2,308.40 | 2,413.53 |          |          |
|                                  | 26.61    | 27.85    | 29.14    | 30.45    | 31.84    | 33.29    |          |          |
| Inspector 2 (6F1)                |          |          |          |          |          |          |          |          |
| Apr 1, 2017                      | 54,451   | 56,512   | 58,441   | 60,635   | 62,905   | 65,288   |          |          |
| • '                              | 2,087.28 | 2,166.30 | 2,240.25 | 2,324.35 | 2,411.35 | 2,502.70 |          |          |
|                                  | 28.79    | 29.88    | 30.90    | 32.06    | 33.26    | 34.52    |          |          |
| Inspector 3 (6F3)                |          |          |          |          |          |          |          |          |
| Apr 1, 2017                      | 57,496   | 59,576   | 61,751   | 64,040   | 66,593   | 69,184   | 71,794   |          |
| 1 , -                            | 2,204.00 | 2,283.75 | 2,367.13 | 2,454.85 | 2,552.73 | 2,652.05 | 2,752.10 |          |
|                                  | 30.40    | 31.50    | 32.65    | 33.86    | 35.21    | 36.58    | 37.96    |          |
|                                  |          |          |          |          |          |          |          |          |

| Manager 2 (612)             |          |          |          |          |          |          |          |          |          |          |
|-----------------------------|----------|----------|----------|----------|----------|----------|----------|----------|----------|----------|
| Apr 1, 2017                 | 57,496   | 59,576   | 61,751   | 64,040   | 66,593   | 69,184   | 71,794   |          |          |          |
|                             | 2,204.00 | 2,283.75 | 2,367.13 | 2,454.85 | 2,552.73 | 2,652.05 | 2,752.10 |          |          |          |
|                             | 30.40    | 31.50    | 32.65    | 33.86    | 35.21    | 36.58    | 37.96    |          |          |          |
| Research Assistant (6RA)    |          |          |          |          |          |          |          |          |          |          |
| Apr 1, 2017                 | 38,961   | 40,153   | 41,495   | 42,876   | 44,200   | 45,827   |          |          |          |          |
|                             | 1,493.50 | 1,539.18 | 1,590.65 | 1,643.58 | 1,694.33 | 1,756.68 |          |          |          |          |
|                             | 20.60    | 21.23    | 21.94    | 22.67    | 23.37    | 24.23    |          |          |          |          |
| Researcher 1 (6RS)          |          |          |          |          |          |          |          |          |          |          |
| Apr 1, 2017                 | 45,827   | 47,377   | 49,004   | 50,801   | 52,446   | 54,432   | 56,493   | 58,593   | 60,692   | 63,094   |
| ·                           | 1,756.68 | 1,816.13 | 1,878.48 | 1,947.35 | 2,010.43 | 2,086.55 | 2,165.58 | 2,246.05 | 2,326.53 | 2,418.60 |
|                             | 24.23    | 25.05    | 25.91    | 26.86    | 27.73    | 28.78    | 29.87    | 30.98    | 32.09    | 33.36    |
| Researcher 2 (6R2)          |          |          |          |          |          |          |          |          |          |          |
| Apr 1, 2017                 | 59,576   | 62,092   | 64,494   | 66,858   | 69,430   | 72,210   | 74,971   |          |          |          |
|                             | 2,283.75 | 2,380.18 | 2,472.25 | 2,562.88 | 2,661.48 | 2,768.05 | 2,873.90 |          |          |          |
|                             | 31.50    | 32.83    | 34.10    | 35.35    | 36.71    | 38.18    | 39.64    |          |          |          |
| Researcher 3 (6R3)          |          |          |          |          |          |          |          |          |          |          |
| Apr 1, 2017                 | 65,496   | 67,879   | 70,432   | 73,156   | 76,068   | 79,000   | 82,291   |          |          |          |
| •                           | 2,510.68 | 2,602.03 | 2,699.90 | 2,804.30 | 2,915.95 | 3,028.33 | 3,154.48 |          |          |          |
|                             | 34.63    | 35.89    | 37.24    | 38.68    | 40.22    | 41.77    | 43.51    |          |          |          |
| Casual: Auxiliary Inspector |          |          |          |          |          |          |          |          |          |          |
| Apr 1, 2017                 | 31,623   | 33,098   | 34,838   | 36,559   |          |          |          |          |          |          |
| •                           | 1,212.20 | 1,268.75 | 1,335.45 | 1,401.43 |          |          |          |          |          |          |
|                             | 16.72    | 17.50    | 18.42    | 19.33    |          |          |          |          |          |          |
|                             |          |          |          |          |          |          |          |          |          |          |

March 30, 2019 to January 1, 2020

|          |  |   |  | •   | •  |   |  |
|----------|--|---|--|---|--|---|--|
|          |  |   |  |   |  |   |  |
| 36,654   | 38,299   | 39,661  | 41,212   | 42,895  | 44,635   |   |  |
| 1,405.05 | 1,468.13   | 1,520.33  | 1,579.78   | 1,644.30  | 1,711.00   |   |  |
| 19.38    | 20.25  | 20.97   | 21.79  | 22.68   | 23.60  |   |  |
|          |  |   |  |   |  |   |  |
|          |  |   |  |   |  |   |  |
| 41,836   | 42,914   | 44,124  | 45,354   | 46,564  | 47,812   |   |  |
| 1,603.70 | 1,645.03   | 1,691.43  | 1,738.55   | 1,784.95  | 1,832.80   |   |  |
| 22.12    | 22.69  | 23.33   | 23.98  | 24.62   | 25.28  |   |  |
|          |  |   |  |   |  |   |  |
|          |  |   |  |   |  |   |  |
| 55,207   | 57,307   | 59,255  | 61,487   | 63,794  | 66,196   |   |  |
| 2,116.28 | 2,196.75   | 2,271.43  | 2,356.98   | 2,445.43  | 2,537.50   |   |  |
| 29.19    | 30.30  | 31.33   | 32.51  | 33.73   | 35.00  |   |  |
|          |  |   |  |   |  |   |  |
|          |  |   |  |   |  |   |  |
| 41,911   | 42,971   | 44,162  | 45,429   | 46,640  | 48,039   | 49,514  | 50,971   |
| 1,606.60 | 1,647.20   | 1,692.88  | 1,741.45   | 1,787.85  | 1,841.50   | 1,898.05  | 1,953.88   |
| 22.16    | 22.72  | 23.35   | 24.02  | 24.66   | 25.40  | 26.18   | 26.95  |
|          |  |   |  |   |  |   |  |
|          |  |   |  |   |  |   |  |
| 49,193   | 50,422   | 51,746  | 53,051   | 54,602  | 56,040   |   |  |
| 1,885.73 | 1,932.85   | 1,983.60  | 2,033.63   | 2,093.08  | 2,148.18   |   |  |
| 26.01    | 26.66  | 27.36   | 28.05  | 28.87   | 29.63  |   |  |
|          | 1,405.05<br>19.38<br>41,836<br>1,603.70<br>22.12<br>55,207<br>2,116.28<br>29.19<br>41,911<br>1,606.60<br>22.16<br>49,193<br>1,885.73 | 1,405.05       1,468.13         19.38       20.25         41,836       42,914         1,603.70       1,645.03         22.12       22.69         55,207       57,307         2,116.28       2,196.75         29.19       30.30         41,911       42,971         1,606.60       1,647.20         22.16       22.72         49,193       50,422         1,885.73       1,932.85 | 1,405.05       1,468.13       1,520.33         19.38       20.25       20.97         41,836       42,914       44,124         1,603.70       1,645.03       1,691.43         22.12       22.69       23.33         55,207       57,307       59,255         2,116.28       2,196.75       2,271.43         29.19       30.30       31.33         41,911       42,971       44,162         1,606.60       1,647.20       1,692.88         22.16       22.72       23.35         49,193       50,422       51,746         1,885.73       1,932.85       1,983.60 | 1,405.05       1,468.13       1,520.33       1,579.78         19.38       20.25       20.97       21.79         41,836       42,914       44,124       45,354         1,603.70       1,645.03       1,691.43       1,738.55         22.12       22.69       23.33       23.98         55,207       57,307       59,255       61,487         2,116.28       2,196.75       2,271.43       2,356.98         29.19       30.30       31.33       32.51         41,911       42,971       44,162       45,429         1,606.60       1,647.20       1,692.88       1,741.45         22.16       22.72       23.35       24.02         49,193       50,422       51,746       53,051         1,885.73       1,932.85       1,983.60       2,033.63 | 1,405.05       1,468.13       1,520.33       1,579.78       1,644.30         19.38       20.25       20.97       21.79       22.68         41,836       42,914       44,124       45,354       46,564         1,603.70       1,645.03       1,691.43       1,738.55       1,784.95         22.12       22.69       23.33       23.98       24.62         55,207       57,307       59,255       61,487       63,794         2,116.28       2,196.75       2,271.43       2,356.98       2,445.43         29.19       30.30       31.33       32.51       33.73         41,911       42,971       44,162       45,429       46,640         1,606.60       1,647.20       1,692.88       1,741.45       1,787.85         22.16       22.72       23.35       24.02       24.66         49,193       50,422       51,746       53,051       54,602         1,885.73       1,932.85       1,983.60       2,033.63       2,093.08 | 1,405.05       1,468.13       1,520.33       1,579.78       1,644.30       1,711.00         19.38       20.25       20.97       21.79       22.68       23.60         41,836       42,914       44,124       45,354       46,564       47,812         1,603.70       1,645.03       1,691.43       1,738.55       1,784.95       1,832.80         22.12       22.69       23.33       23.98       24.62       25.28         55,207       57,307       59,255       61,487       63,794       66,196         2,116.28       2,196.75       2,271.43       2,356.98       2,445.43       2,537.50         29.19       30.30       31.33       32.51       33.73       35.00         41,911       42,971       44,162       45,429       46,640       48,039         1,606.60       1,647.20       1,692.88       1,741.45       1,787.85       1,841.50         22.16       22.72       23.35       24.02       24.66       25.40         49,193       50,422       51,746       53,051       54,602       56,040         1,885.73       1,932.85       1,983.60       2,033.63       2,093.08       2,148.18 | 1,405.05       1,468.13       1,520.33       1,579.78       1,644.30       1,711.00         19.38       20.25       20.97       21.79       22.68       23.60         41,836       42,914       44,124       45,354       46,564       47,812         1,603.70       1,645.03       1,691.43       1,738.55       1,784.95       1,832.80         22.12       22.69       23.33       23.98       24.62       25.28         55,207       57,307       59,255       61,487       63,794       66,196         2,116.28       2,196.75       2,271.43       2,356.98       2,445.43       2,537.50         29.19       30.30       31.33       32.51       33.73       35.00         41,911       42,971       44,162       45,429       46,640       48,039       49,514         1,606.60       1,647.20       1,692.88       1,741.45       1,787.85       1,841.50       1,898.05         22.16       22.72       23.35       24.02       24.66       25.40       26.18         49,193       50,422       51,746       53,051       54,602       56,040         1,885.73       1,932.85       1,983.60       2,033.63       2,093.08 |

| Information Technologist 1 (6T2) |                   |                   |                   |                   |                   |                   |                   |                   |
|----------------------------------|-------------------|-------------------|-------------------|-------------------|-------------------|-------------------|-------------------|-------------------|
|                                  | 61,846            | 64,134            | 66,461            | 68,919            | 71,473            | 74,291            | 77,128            | 80,059            |
|                                  | 2,370.75          | 2,458.48          | 2,547.65          | 2,641.90          | 2,739.78          | 2,847.80          | 2,956.55          | 3,068.93          |
|                                  | 32.70             | 33.91             | 35.14             | 36.44             | 37.79             | 39.28             | 40.78             | 42.33             |
|                                  |                   |                   |                   |                   |                   |                   |                   |                   |
| Information Technologist 2 (6IT) | 07.044            | 70.005            | 70.040            | 75 747            | 70 505            | 04.040            | 04.005            | 00 007            |
|                                  | 67,614            | 70,205            | 73,042            | 75,747            | 78,565            | 81,610            | 84,825            | 88,097            |
|                                  | 2,591.88<br>35.75 | 2,691.20<br>37.12 | 2,799.95<br>38.62 | 2,903.63<br>40.05 | 3,011.65<br>41.54 | 3,128.38<br>43.15 | 3,251.63<br>44.85 | 3,377.05<br>46.58 |
|                                  | 33.73             | 37.12             | 30.02             | 40.03             | 41.34             | 43.13             | 44.00             | 40.30             |
| Information Technologist 3 (8T3) |                   |                   |                   |                   |                   |                   |                   |                   |
|                                  | 73,042            | 75,747            | 78,565            | 81,610            | 84,825            | 88,097            | 91,804            |                   |
|                                  | 2,799.95          | 2,903.63          | 3,011.65          | 3,128.38          | 3,251.63          | 3,377.05          | 3,519.15          |                   |
|                                  | 38.62             | 40.05             | 41.54             | 43.15             | 44.85             | 46.58             | 48.54             |                   |
|                                  |                   |                   |                   |                   |                   |                   |                   |                   |
| Inspector 1 (6E1)                |                   |                   |                   |                   |                   |                   |                   |                   |
|                                  | 51,027            | 53,411            | 55,888            | 58,404            | 61,070            | 63,851            |                   |                   |
|                                  | 1,956.05          | 2,047.40          | 2,142.38          | 2,238.80          | 2,341.03          | 2,447.60          |                   |                   |
|                                  | 26.98             | 28.24             | 29.55             | 30.88             | 32.29             | 33.76             |                   |                   |
| La analas (2 (0 <b>54</b> )      |                   |                   |                   |                   |                   |                   |                   |                   |
| Inspector 2 (6F1)                | FF 007            | F7 207            | E0 0EE            | C4 407            | C2 704            | CC 40C            |                   |                   |
|                                  | 55,207            | 57,307            | 59,255            | 61,487            | 63,794            | 66,196            |                   |                   |
|                                  | 2,116.28          | 2,196.75          | 2,271.43          | 2,356.98          | 2,445.43          | 2,537.50          |                   |                   |
|                                  | 29.19             | 30.30             | 31.33             | 32.51             | 33.73             | 35.00             |                   |                   |

| Inspector 3 (6F3)        |                    |                      |                    |                    |                    |                    |                    |          |          |          |
|--------------------------|--------------------|----------------------|--------------------|--------------------|--------------------|--------------------|--------------------|----------|----------|----------|
|                          | 58,309             | 60,408               | 62,621             | 64,929             | 67,520             | 70,149             | 72,797             |          |          |          |
|                          | 2,235.18<br>30.83  | 2,315.65<br>31.94    | 2,400.48<br>33.11  | 2,488.93<br>34.33  | 2,588.25<br>35.70  | 2,689.03<br>37.09  | 2,790.53<br>38.49  |          |          |          |
|                          | 00.00              | 01.01                | 00.11              | 01.00              | 00.70              | 07.00              | 00.10              |          |          |          |
| Manager 2 (6I2)          |                    |                      |                    |                    |                    |                    |                    |          |          |          |
|                          | 58,309<br>2,235.18 | 60,408<br>2,315.65   | 62,621<br>2,400.48 | 64,929<br>2,488.93 | 67,520<br>2,588.25 | 70,149<br>2,689.03 | 72,797<br>2,790.53 |          |          |          |
|                          | 30.83              | 31.94                | 33.11              | 34.33              | 35.70              | 37.09              | 38.49              |          |          |          |
|                          |                    |                      |                    |                    |                    |                    |                    |          |          |          |
| Research Assistant (6RA) | 20.540             | 40.700               | 40.000             | 40.404             | 44.004             | 40, 470            |                    |          |          |          |
|                          | 39,510<br>1,514.53 | 40,720<br>1,560.93   | 42,082<br>1,613.13 | 43,481<br>1,666.78 | 44,824<br>1,718.25 | 46,470<br>1,781.33 |                    |          |          |          |
|                          | 20.89              | 21.53                | 22.25              | 22.99              | 23.70              | 24.57              |                    |          |          |          |
| D 1 4 (0D0)              |                    |                      |                    |                    |                    |                    |                    |          |          |          |
| Researcher 1 (6RS)       | 46,470             | 48,039               | 49,685             | 51,519             | 53,184             | 55,188             | 57,288             | 59,406   | 61,543   | 63,983   |
|                          | 1,781.33           | 1,841.50             | 1,904.58           | 1,974.90           | 2,038.70           | 2,115.55           | 2,196.03           | 2,277.23 | 2,359.15 | 2,452.68 |
|                          | 24.57              | 25.40                | 26.27              | 27.24              | 28.12              | 29.18              | 30.29              | 31.41    | 32.54    | 33.83    |
| Researcher 2 (6R2)       |                    |                      |                    |                    |                    |                    |                    |          |          |          |
| resocatorior E (orte)    | 60,408             | 62,962               | 65,401             | 67,784             | 70,394             | 73,213             | 76,012             |          |          |          |
|                          | 2,315.65           | 2,413.53             | 2,507.05           | 2,598.40           | 2,698.45           | 2,806.48           | 2,913.78           |          |          |          |
|                          | 31.94              | 33.29                | 34.58              | 35.84              | 37.22              | 38.71              | 40.19              |          |          |          |
| Researcher 3 (6R3)       |                    |                      |                    |                    |                    |                    |                    |          |          |          |
| . ,                      | 66,404             | 68,825               | 71,416             | 74,177             | 77,128             | 80,097             | 83,444             |          |          |          |
|                          | 2,545.48           | \$ 2,638.28<br>36.39 | 2,737.60<br>37.76  | 2,843.45<br>39.22  | 2,956.55<br>40.78  | 3,070.38<br>42.35  | 3,198.70<br>44.12  |          |          |          |
|                          | 35.11              | 30.38                | 31.10              | 39.22              | 40.70              | 42.33              | 44.12              |          |          |          |

| Casual: Auxiliary Inspector      |          |          |          |          |          |          |          |          |
|----------------------------------|----------|----------|----------|----------|----------|----------|----------|----------|
|                                  | 32,058   | 33,571   | 35,330   | 37,070   |          |          |          |          |
|                                  | 1,228.88 | 1,286.88 | 1,354.30 | 1,421.00 |          |          |          |          |
|                                  | 16.95    | 17.75    | 18.68    | 19.60    |          |          |          |          |
|                                  |          |          |          |          |          |          |          |          |
|                                  |          |          |          |          |          |          |          |          |
| Inspector 3 (6F3)                |          |          |          |          |          |          |          |          |
|                                  | 58,309   | 60,408   | 62,621   | 64,929   | 67,520   | 70,149   | 72,797   |          |
|                                  | 2,235.18 | 2,315.65 | 2,400.48 | 2,488.93 | 2,588.25 | 2,689.03 | 2,790.53 |          |
|                                  | 30.83    | 31.94    | 33.11    | 34.33    | 35.70    | 37.09    | 38.49    |          |
|                                  |          |          |          |          |          |          |          |          |
| Information Technologist 1 (6T2) |          |          |          |          |          |          |          |          |
|                                  | 61,846   | 64,134   | 66,461   | 68,919   | 71,473   | 74,291   | 77,128   | 80,059   |
|                                  | 2,370.75 | 2,458.48 | 2,547.65 | 2,641.90 | 2,739.78 | 2,847.80 | 2,956.55 | 3,068.93 |
|                                  | 32.70    | 33.91    | 35.14    | 36.44    | 37.79    | 39.28    | 40.78    | 42.33    |
|                                  |          |          |          |          |          |          |          |          |
| Clerk 3 (6D1)                    |          |          |          |          |          |          |          |          |
|                                  | 41,911   | 42,971   | 44,162   | 45,429   | 46,640   | 48,039   | 49,514   | 50,971   |
|                                  | 1,606.60 | 1,647.20 | 1,692.88 | 1,741.45 | 1,787.85 | 1,841.50 | 1,898.05 | 1,953.88 |
|                                  | 22.16    | 22.72    | 23.35    | 24.02    | 24.66    | 25.40    | 26.18    | 26.95    |
|                                  |          |          |          |          |          |          |          |          |
| Researcher 2 (6R2)               |          |          |          |          |          |          |          |          |
|                                  | 60,408   | 62,962   | 65,401   | 67,784   | 70,394   | 73,213   | 76,012   |          |
|                                  | 2,315.65 | 2,413.53 | 2,507.05 | 2,598.40 | 2,698.45 | 2,806.48 | 2,913.78 |          |
|                                  | 31.94    | 33.29    | 34.58    | 35.84    | 37.22    | 38.71    | 40.19    |          |

## MLCC Clerk Classifications Green Circled

| Clerk 3 |          |          |          |          |
|---------|----------|----------|----------|----------|
|         | 43,424   | 46,318   | 49,514   | 51,973   |
|         | 1,664.60 | 1,775.53 | 1,898.05 | 1,992.30 |
|         | 22.96    | 24.49    | 26.18    | 27.48    |
|         |          |          |          |          |
| Clerk 5 |          |          |          |          |
|         | 46,299   | 49,968   | 54,167   | 56,910   |
|         | 1,774.80 | 1,915.45 | 2,076.40 | 2,181.53 |
|         | 24.48    | 26.42    | 28.64    | 30.09    |

January 1, 2020 to March 27, 2020 (New Pay System Implemented January 1, 2020)

| Pay Grade |        | 1        | 2        | 3        | 4        | 5        | 6        |
|-----------|--------|----------|----------|----------|----------|----------|----------|
| 1         | Annual | 36,654   | 38,261   | 39,869   | 41,477   | 43,084   | 44,711   |
|           | Bi-W   | 1,405.05 | 1,466.68 | 1,528.30 | 1,589.93 | 1,651.55 | 1,713.90 |
|           | Hourly | 19.38    | 20.23    | 21.08    | 21.93    | 22.78    | 23.64    |
| 2         | Annual | 40,682   | 42,384   | 43,992   | 45,600   | 47,207   | 48,834   |
|           | Bi-W   | 1,559.48 | 1,624.73 | 1,686.35 | 1,747.98 | 1,809.60 | 1,871.95 |
|           | Hourly | 21.51    | 22.41    | 23.26    | 24.11    | 24.96    | 25.82    |
| 3         | Annual | 44,805   | 46,583   | 48,380   | 50,177   | 51,973   | 53,751   |
|           | Bi-W   | 1,717.53 | 1,785.68 | 1,854.55 | 1,923.43 | 1,992.30 | 2,060.45 |
|           | Hourly | 23.69    | 24.63    | 25.58    | 26.53    | 27.48    | 28.42    |
| 4         | Annual | 47,491   | 49,287   | 51,084   | 52,881   | 54,678   | 56,456   |
|           | Bi-W   | 1,820.48 | 1,889.35 | 1,958.23 | 2,027.10 | 2,095.98 | 2,164.13 |
|           | Hourly | 25.11    | 26.06    | 27.01    | 27.96    | 28.91    | 29.85    |
| 5         | Annual | 50,195   | 52,087   | 53,997   | 55,907   | 57,817   | 59,727   |
|           | Bi-W   | 1,924.15 | 1,996.65 | 2,069.88 | 2,143.10 | 2,216.33 | 2,289.55 |
|           | Hourly | 26.54    | 27.54    | 28.55    | 29.56    | 30.57    | 31.58    |
| 6         | Annual | 54,961   | 57,061   | 59,122   | 61,222   | 63,302   | 65,401   |
|           | Bi-W   | 2,106.85 | 2,187.33 | 2,266.35 | 2,346.83 | 2,426.58 | 2,507.05 |
|           | Hourly | 29.06    | 30.17    | 31.26    | 32.37    | 33.47    | 34.58    |

| 7  | Annual | 58,082   | 60,181   | 62,262   | 64,361   | 66,461   | 68,541   |
|----|--------|----------|----------|----------|----------|----------|----------|
|    | Bi-W   | 2,226.48 | 2,306.95 | 2,386.70 | 2,467.18 | 2,547.65 | 2,627.40 |
|    | Hourly | 30.71    | 31.82    | 32.92    | 34.03    | 35.14    | 36.24    |
| 8  | Annual | 61,241   | 63,434   | 65,628   | 67,841   | 70,035   | 72,248   |
|    | Bi-W   | 2,347.55 | 2,431.65 | 2,515.75 | 2,600.58 | 2,684.68 | 2,769.50 |
|    | Hourly | 32.38    | 33.54    | 34.70    | 35.87    | 37.03    | 38.20    |
| 9  | Annual | 68,938   | 71,416   | 73,912   | 76,390   | 78,887   | 81,345   |
|    | Bi-W   | 2,642.63 | 2,737.60 | 2,833.30 | 2,928.28 | 3,023.98 | 3,118.23 |
|    | Hourly | 36.45    | 37.76    | 39.08    | 40.39    | 41.71    | 43.01    |
| 10 | Annual | 72,664   | 75,274   | 77,903   | 80,513   | 83,142   | 85,752   |
|    | Bi-W   | 2,785.45 | 2,885.50 | 2,986.28 | 3,086.33 | 3,187.10 | 3,287.15 |
|    | Hourly | 38.42    | 39.80    | 41.19    | 42.57    | 43.96    | 45.34    |
| 11 | Annual | 79,208   | 82,064   | 84,920   | 87,757   | 90,613   | 93,468   |
|    | Bi-W   | 3,036.30 | 3,145.78 | 3,255.25 | 3,364.00 | 3,473.48 | 3,582.95 |
|    | Hourly | 41.88    | 43.39    | 44.90    | 46.40    | 47.91    | 49.42    |

# Casual Pay Plan

| Casual: Auxiliary |
|-------------------|
| Inspector         |

| 32,058   | 33,571   | 35,330   | 37,070   |
|----------|----------|----------|----------|
| 1,228.88 | 1,286.88 | 1,354.30 | 1,421.00 |
| 16.95    | 17.75    | 18.68    | 19.60    |

## **Green Circled**

| Inspector 3 (6F3)                | 58,309<br>2,235.18<br>30.83 | 60,408<br>2,315.65<br>31.94 | 62,621<br>2,400.48<br>33.11 | 64,929<br>2,488.93<br>34.33 | 67,520<br>2,588.25<br>35.70 | 70,149<br>2,689.03<br>37.09 | 72,797<br>2,790.53<br>38.49 |                             |
|----------------------------------|-----------------------------|-----------------------------|-----------------------------|-----------------------------|-----------------------------|-----------------------------|-----------------------------|-----------------------------|
| Information Technologist 1 (6T2) |                             |                             |                             |                             |                             |                             |                             |                             |
|                                  | 61,846<br>2,370.75<br>32.70 | 64,134<br>2,458.48<br>33.91 | 66,461<br>2,547.65<br>35.14 | 68,919<br>2,641.90<br>36.44 | 71,473<br>2,739.78<br>37.79 | 74,291<br>2,847.80<br>39.28 | 77,128<br>2,956.55<br>40.78 | 80,059<br>3,068.93<br>42.33 |
| Clerk 3 (6D1)                    |                             |                             |                             |                             |                             |                             |                             |                             |
|                                  | 41,911                      | 42,971                      | 44,162                      | 45,429                      | 46,640                      | 48,039                      | 49,514                      | 50,971                      |
|                                  | 1,606.60<br>22.16           | 1,647.20<br>22.72           | 1,692.88<br>23.35           | 1,741.45<br>24.02           | 1,787.85<br>24.66           | 1,841.50<br>25.40           | 1,898.05<br>26.18           | 1,953.88<br>26.95           |
| Researcher 2 (6R2)               |                             |                             |                             |                             |                             |                             |                             |                             |
| ` '                              | 60,408<br>2,315.65<br>31.94 | 62,962<br>2,413.53<br>33.29 | 65,401<br>2,507.05<br>34.58 | 67,784<br>2,598.40<br>35.84 | 70,394<br>2,698.45<br>37.22 | 73,213<br>2,806.48<br>38.71 | 76,012<br>2,913.78<br>40.19 |                             |

March 28, 2020 to March 26, 2021

| Pay Grade |        | 1        | 2        | 3        | 4        | 5        | 6        |
|-----------|--------|----------|----------|----------|----------|----------|----------|
| 1         | Annual | 36,843   | 38,450   | 40,077   | 41,684   | 43,292   | 44,937   |
|           | Bi-W   | 1,412.30 | 1,473.93 | 1,536.28 | 1,597.90 | 1,659.53 | 1,722.60 |
|           | Hourly | 19.48    | 20.33    | 21.19    | 22.04    | 22.89    | 23.76    |
| 2         | Annual | 40,890   | 42,592   | 44,219   | 45,827   | 47,434   | 49,080   |
|           | Bi-W   | 1,567.45 | 1,632.70 | 1,695.05 | 1,756.68 | 1,818.30 | 1,881.38 |
|           | Hourly | 21.62    | 22.52    | 23.38    | 24.23    | 25.08    | 25.95    |
| 3         | Annual | 45,032   | 46,810   | 48,626   | 50,422   | 52,238   | 54,016   |
|           | Bi-W   | 1,726.23 | 1,794.38 | 1,863.98 | 1,932.85 | 2,002.45 | 2,070.60 |
|           | Hourly | 23.81    | 24.75    | 25.71    | 26.66    | 27.62    | 28.56    |
| 4         | Annual | 47,737   | 49,533   | 51,349   | 53,146   | 54,943   | 56,739   |
|           | Bi-W   | 1,829.90 | 1,898.78 | 1,968.38 | 2,037.25 | 2,106.13 | 2,175.00 |
|           | Hourly | 25.24    | 26.19    | 27.15    | 28.10    | 29.05    | 30.00    |
| 5         | Annual | 50,441   | 52,351   | 54,262   | 56,191   | 58,101   | 60,030   |
|           | Bi-W   | 1,933.58 | 2,006.80 | 2,080.03 | 2,153.98 | 2,227.20 | 2,301.15 |
|           | Hourly | 26.67    | 27.68    | 28.69    | 29.71    | 30.72    | 31.74    |
| 6         | Annual | 55,245   | 57,344   | 59,425   | 61,524   | 63,624   | 65,723   |
|           | Bi-W   | 2,117.73 | 2,198.20 | 2,277.95 | 2,358.43 | 2,438.90 | 2,519.38 |
|           | Hourly | 29.21    | 30.32    | 31.42    | 32.53    | 33.64    | 34.75    |
| 7         | Annual | 58,366   | 60,484   | 62,564   | 64,683   | 66,801   | 68,881   |
|           | Bi-W   | 2,237.35 | 2,318.55 | 2,398.30 | 2,479.50 | 2,560.70 | 2,640.45 |
|           | Hourly | 30.86    | 31.98    | 33.08    | 34.20    | 35.32    | 36.42    |

| Pay Grade                      |        | 1                           | 2                           | 3                           | 4                           | 5        | 6        |
|--------------------------------|--------|-----------------------------|-----------------------------|-----------------------------|-----------------------------|----------|----------|
| 8                              | Annual | 61,543                      | 63,756                      | 65,950                      | 68,182                      | 70,394   | 72,607   |
|                                | Bi-W   | 2,359.15                    | 2,443.98                    | 2,528.08                    | 2,613.63                    | 2,698.45 | 2,783.28 |
|                                | Hourly | 32.54                       | 33.71                       | 34.87                       | 36.05                       | 37.22    | 38.39    |
| 9                              | Annual | 69,279                      | 71,775                      | 74,291                      | 76,768                      | 79,284   | 81,761   |
|                                | Bi-W   | 2,655.68                    | 2,751.38                    | 2,847.80                    | 2,942.78                    | 3,039.20 | 3,134.18 |
|                                | Hourly | 36.63                       | 37.95                       | 39.28                       | 40.59                       | 41.92    | 43.23    |
| 10                             | Annual | 73,024                      | 75,652                      | 78,300                      | 80,910                      | 83,558   | 86,187   |
|                                | Bi-W   | 2,799.23                    | 2,900.00                    | 3,001.50                    | 3,101.55                    | 3,203.05 | 3,303.83 |
|                                | Hourly | 38.61                       | 40.00                       | 41.40                       | 42.78                       | 44.18    | 45.57    |
| 11                             | Annual | 79,605                      | 82,480                      | 85,336                      | 88,192                      | 91,067   | 93,941   |
|                                | Bi-W   | 3,051.53                    | 3,161.73                    | 3,271.20                    | 3,380.68                    | 3,490.88 | 3,601.08 |
|                                | Hourly | 42.09                       | 43.61                       | 45.12                       | 46.63                       | 48.15    | 49.67    |
|                                |        |                             |                             | Casual                      | Pay Plan                    |          |          |
| Casual: Auxiliary<br>Inspector |        |                             |                             |                             |                             |          |          |
| •                              |        | 32,209<br>1,234.68<br>17.03 | 33,741<br>1,293.40<br>17.84 | 35,500<br>1,360.83<br>18.77 | 37,259<br>1,428.25<br>19.70 |          |          |

## **Green Circled**

| Inspector 3 (6F3)                | 58,593<br>2,246.05<br>30.98 | 60,711<br>2,327.25<br>32.10 | 62,943<br>2,412.80<br>33.28 | 65,250<br>2,501.25<br>34.50 | 67,860<br>2,601.30<br>35.88 | 70,508<br>2,702.80<br>37.28 | 73,156<br>2,804.30<br>38.68 |                             |
|----------------------------------|-----------------------------|-----------------------------|-----------------------------|-----------------------------|-----------------------------|-----------------------------|-----------------------------|-----------------------------|
| Information Technologist 1 (6T2) |                             |                             |                             |                             |                             |                             |                             |                             |
| 1 (012)                          | 62,148<br>2,382.35<br>32.86 | 64,456<br>2,470.80<br>34.08 | 66,801<br>2,560.70<br>35.32 | 69,260<br>2,654.95<br>36.62 | 71,832<br>2,753.55<br>37.98 | 74,669<br>2,862.30<br>39.48 | 77,506<br>2,971.05<br>40.98 | 80,456<br>3,084.15<br>42.54 |
| Clerk 3 (6D1)                    |                             |                             |                             |                             |                             |                             |                             |                             |
|                                  | 42,120<br>1,614.58<br>22.27 | 43,179<br>1,655.18<br>22.83 | 44,389<br>1,701.58<br>23.47 | 45,656<br>1,750.15<br>24.14 | 46,867<br>1,796.55<br>24.78 | 48,285<br>1,850.93<br>25.53 | 49,760<br>1,907.48<br>26.31 | 51,217<br>1,963.30<br>27.08 |
| Researcher 2 (6R2)               |                             |                             |                             |                             |                             |                             |                             |                             |
|                                  | 60,711<br>2,327.25<br>32.10 | 63,283<br>2,425.85<br>33.46 | 65,723<br>2,519.38<br>34.75 | 68,125<br>2,611.45<br>36.02 | 70,754<br>2,712.23<br>37.41 | 73,572<br>2,820.25<br>38.90 | 76,390<br>2,928.28<br>40.39 |                             |

March 27, 2021 to March 29, 2022

| Pay Grade |        | 1        | 2        | 3        | 4        | 5        | 6        |
|-----------|--------|----------|----------|----------|----------|----------|----------|
| 1         | Annual | 37,448   | 39,093   | 40,739   | 42,365   | 44,011   | 45,675   |
|           | Bi-W   | 1,435.50 | 1,498.58 | 1,561.65 | 1,624.00 | 1,687.08 | 1,750.88 |
|           | Hourly | 19.80    | 20.67    | 21.54    | 22.40    | 23.27    | 24.15    |
| 2         | Annual | 41,571   | 43,292   | 44,957   | 46,583   | 48,210   | 49,893   |
|           | Bi-W   | 1,593.55 | 1,659.53 | 1,723.33 | 1,785.68 | 1,848.03 | 1,912.55 |
|           | Hourly | 21.98    | 22.89    | 23.77    | 24.63    | 25.49    | 26.38    |
| 3         | Annual | 45,770   | 47,585   | 49,420   | 51,254   | 53,108   | 54,905   |
|           | Bi-W   | 1,754.50 | 1,824.10 | 1,894.43 | 1,964.75 | 2,035.80 | 2,104.68 |
|           | Hourly | 24.20    | 25.16    | 26.13    | 27.10    | 28.08    | 29.03    |
| 4         | Annual | 48,531   | 50,347   | 52,200   | 54,016   | 55,850   | 57,685   |
|           | Bi-W   | 1,860.35 | 1,929.95 | 2,001.00 | 2,070.60 | 2,140.93 | 2,211.25 |
|           | Hourly | 25.66    | 26.62    | 27.60    | 28.56    | 29.53    | 30.50    |
| 5         | Annual | 51,273   | 53,221   | 55,151   | 57,117   | 59,066   | 61,014   |
|           | Bi-W   | 1,965.48 | 2,040.15 | 2,114.10 | 2,189.50 | 2,264.18 | 2,338.85 |
|           | Hourly | 27.11    | 28.14    | 29.16    | 30.20    | 31.23    | 32.26    |
| 6         | Annual | 56,153   | 58,290   | 60,408   | 62,546   | 64,683   | 66,801   |
|           | Bi-W   | 2,152.53 | 2,234.45 | 2,315.65 | 2,397.58 | 2,479.50 | 2,560.70 |
|           | Hourly | 29.69    | 30.82    | 31.94    | 33.07    | 34.20    | 35.32    |
| 7         | Annual | 59,330   | 61,487   | 63,605   | 65,742   | 67,898   | 70,016   |
|           | Bi-W   | 2,274.33 | 2,356.98 | 2,438.18 | 2,520.10 | 2,602.75 | 2,683.95 |
|           | Hourly | 31.37    | 32.51    | 33.63    | 34.76    | 35.90    | 37.02    |

| 8                 | Annual<br>Bi-W<br>Hourly | 62,564<br>2,398.30<br>33.08 | 64,815<br>2,484.58<br>34.27 | 67,047<br>2,570.13<br>35.45 | 69,298<br>2,656.40<br>36.64 | 71,548<br>2,742.68<br>37.83 | 73,799<br>2,828.95<br>39.02 |                             |  |
|-------------------|--------------------------|-----------------------------|-----------------------------|-----------------------------|-----------------------------|-----------------------------|-----------------------------|-----------------------------|--|
| 9                 | Annual<br>Bi-W<br>Hourly | 70,414<br>2,699.18<br>37.23 | 72,967<br>2,797.05<br>38.58 | 75,520<br>2,894.93<br>39.93 | 78,035<br>2,991.35<br>41.26 | 80,589<br>3,089.23<br>42.61 | 83,104<br>3,185.65<br>43.94 |                             |  |
| 10                | Annual<br>Bi-W<br>Hourly | 74,234<br>2,845.63<br>39.25 | 76,901<br>2,947.85<br>40.66 | 79,586<br>3,050.80<br>42.08 | 82,253<br>3,153.03<br>43.49 | 84,939<br>3,255.98<br>44.91 | 87,605<br>3,358.20<br>46.32 |                             |  |
| 11                | Annual<br>Bi-W<br>Hourly | 80,910<br>3,101.55<br>42.78 | 83,842<br>3,213.93<br>44.33 | 86,735<br>3,324.85<br>45.86 | 89,648<br>3,436.50<br>47.40 | 92,561<br>3,548.15<br>48.94 | 95,492<br>3,660.53<br>50.49 |                             |  |
| Casual: Auxiliary | Casual Pay Plan          |                             |                             |                             |                             |                             |                             |                             |  |
| Inspector         |                          | 32,739<br>1,254.98<br>17.31 | 34,290<br>1,314.43<br>18.13 | 36,086<br>1,383.30<br>19.08 | 37,883<br>1,452.18<br>20.03 |                             |                             |                             |  |
|                   |                          |                             |                             | Green C                     | ircled                      |                             |                             |                             |  |
| Inspector 3 (6F3) |                          | 59,557<br>2,283.03<br>31.49 | 61,713<br>2,365.68<br>32.63 | 63,983<br>2,452.68<br>33.83 | 66,328<br>2,542.58<br>35.07 | 68,976<br>2,644.08<br>36.47 | 71,681<br>2,747.75<br>37.90 | 74,366<br>2,850.70<br>39.32 |  |

| Information Technologist 1 (6T2) |          |          |          |          |          |          |          |          |
|----------------------------------|----------|----------|----------|----------|----------|----------|----------|----------|
|                                  | 63,170   | 65,515   | 67,898   | 70,394   | 73,024   | 75,898   | 78,792   | 81,780   |
|                                  | 2,421.50 | 2,511.40 | 2,602.75 | 2,698.45 | 2,799.23 | 2,909.43 | 3,020.35 | 3,134.90 |
|                                  | 33.40    | 34.64    | 35.90    | 37.22    | 38.61    | 40.13    | 41.66    | 43.24    |
| Clerk 3 (6D1)                    |          |          |          |          |          |          |          |          |
|                                  | 42,819   | 43,897   | 45,127   | 46,413   | 47,642   | 49,080   | 50,574   | 52,068   |
|                                  | 1,641.40 | 1,682.73 | 1,729.85 | 1,779.15 | 1,826.28 | 1,881.38 | 1,938.65 | 1,995.93 |
|                                  | 22.64    | 23.21    | 23.86    | 24.54    | 25.19    | 25.95    | 26.74    | 27.53    |
| Researcher 2 (6R2)               |          |          |          |          |          |          |          |          |
|                                  | 61,713   | 64,323   | 66,801   | 69,241   | 71,927   | 74,782   | 77,657   |          |
|                                  | 2,365.68 | 2,465.73 | 2,560.70 | 2,654.23 | 2,757.18 | 2,866.65 | 2,976.85 |          |
|                                  | 32.63    | 34.01    | 35.32    | 36.61    | 38.03    | 39.54    | 41.06    |          |

100

March 30, 2022 to March 24, 2023

| Pay Grade |        | 1        | 2        | 3        | 4        | 5        | 6        |
|-----------|--------|----------|----------|----------|----------|----------|----------|
| 1         | Annual | 38,204   | 39,869   | 41,552   | 43,217   | 44,900   | 46,583   |
|           | Bi-W   | 1,464.50 | 1,528.30 | 1,592.83 | 1,656.63 | 1,721.15 | 1,785.68 |
|           | Hourly | 20.20    | 21.08    | 21.97    | 22.85    | 23.74    | 24.63    |
| 2         | Annual | 42,403   | 44,162   | 45,864   | 47,510   | 49,174   | 50,895   |
|           | Bi-W   | 1,625.45 | 1,692.88 | 1,758.13 | 1,821.20 | 1,885.00 | 1,950.98 |
|           | Hourly | 22.42    | 23.35    | 24.25    | 25.12    | 26.00    | 26.91    |
| 3         | Annual | 46,677   | 48,531   | 50,403   | 52,276   | 54,167   | 56,002   |
|           | Bi-W   | 1,789.30 | 1,860.35 | 1,932.13 | 2,003.90 | 2,076.40 | 2,146.73 |
|           | Hourly | 24.68    | 25.66    | 26.65    | 27.64    | 28.64    | 29.61    |
| 4         | Annual | 49,496   | 51,349   | 53,240   | 55,094   | 56,966   | 58,839   |
|           | Bi-W   | 1,897.33 | 1,968.38 | 2,040.88 | 2,111.93 | 2,183.70 | 2,255.48 |
|           | Hourly | 26.17    | 27.15    | 28.15    | 29.13    | 30.12    | 31.11    |
| 5         | Annual | 52,295   | 54,281   | 56,247   | 58,252   | 60,238   | 62,243   |
|           | Bi-W   | 2,004.63 | 2,080.75 | 2,156.15 | 2,233.00 | 2,309.13 | 2,385.98 |
|           | Hourly | 27.65    | 28.70    | 29.74    | 30.80    | 31.85    | 32.91    |
| 6         | Annual | 57,269   | 59,463   | 61,619   | 63,794   | 65,969   | 68,144   |
|           | Bi-W   | 2,195.30 | 2,279.40 | 2,362.05 | 2,445.43 | 2,528.80 | 2,612.18 |
|           | Hourly | 30.28    | 31.44    | 32.58    | 33.73    | 34.88    | 36.03    |
| 7         | Annual | 60,522   | 62,716   | 64,872   | 67,066   | 69,260   | 71,416   |
|           | Bi-W   | 2,320.00 | 2,404.10 | 2,486.75 | 2,570.85 | 2,654.95 | 2,737.60 |
|           | Hourly | 32.00    | 33.16    | 34.30    | 35.46    | 36.62    | 37.76    |

| 8                                | Annual<br>Bi-W<br>Hourly | 63,813<br>2,446.15<br>33.74 | 66,120<br>2,534.60<br>34.96 | 68,390<br>2,621.60<br>36.16 | 70,678<br>2,709.33<br>37.37 | 72,986<br>2,797.78<br>38.59 | 75,274<br>2,885.50<br>39.80 |                             |  |
|----------------------------------|--------------------------|-----------------------------|-----------------------------|-----------------------------|-----------------------------|-----------------------------|-----------------------------|-----------------------------|--|
| 9                                | Annual<br>Bi-W<br>Hourly | 71,813<br>2,752.83<br>37.97 | 74,423<br>2,852.88<br>39.35 | 77,033<br>2,952.93<br>40.73 | 79,605<br>3,051.53<br>42.09 | 82,196<br>3,150.85<br>43.46 | 84,768<br>3,249.45<br>44.82 |                             |  |
| 10                               | Annual<br>Bi-W<br>Hourly | 75,728<br>2,902.90<br>40.04 | 78,433<br>3,006.58<br>41.47 | 81,175<br>3,111.70<br>42.92 | 83,898<br>3,216.10<br>44.36 | 86,641<br>3,321.23<br>45.81 | 89,364<br>3,425.63<br>47.25 |                             |  |
| 11                               | Annual<br>Bi-W<br>Hourly | 82,537<br>3,163.90<br>43.64 | 85,525<br>3,278.45<br>45.22 | 88,475<br>3,391.55<br>46.78 | 91,445<br>3,505.38<br>48.35 | 94,414<br>3,619.20<br>49.92 | 97,402<br>3,733.75<br>51.50 |                             |  |
| Casual: Auxiliary                | Casual Pay Plan          |                             |                             |                             |                             |                             |                             |                             |  |
|                                  |                          | 33,400<br>1,280.35<br>17.66 | 34,970<br>1,340.53<br>18.49 | 36,805<br>1,410.85<br>19.46 | 38,640<br>1,481.18<br>20.43 |                             |                             |                             |  |
| (050)                            | Green Circled            |                             |                             |                             |                             |                             |                             |                             |  |
| Inspector 3 (6F3)                |                          | 60,749<br>2,328.70<br>32.12 | 62,943<br>2,412.80<br>33.28 | 65,269<br>2,501.98<br>34.51 | 67,652<br>2,593.33<br>35.77 | 70,357<br>2,697.00<br>37.20 | 73,118<br>2,802.85<br>38.66 | 75,860<br>2,907.98<br>40.11 |  |
| Information Technologist 1 (6T2) |                          | 5                           | 50.20                       |                             |                             |                             |                             |                             |  |

|                    | 64,437<br>2,470.08<br>34.07 | 66,820<br>2,561.43<br>35.33 | 69,260<br>2,654.95<br>36.62 | 71,794<br>2,752.10<br>37.96 | 74,480<br>2,855.05<br>39.38 | 77,411<br>2,967.43<br>40.93 | 80,362<br>3,080.53<br>42.49 | 83,407<br>3,197.25<br>44.10 |
|--------------------|-----------------------------|-----------------------------|-----------------------------|-----------------------------|-----------------------------|-----------------------------|-----------------------------|-----------------------------|
| Clerk 3 (6D1)      |                             |                             |                             |                             |                             |                             |                             |                             |
| ,                  | 43,670                      | 44,767                      | 46,034                      | 47,340                      | 48,588                      | 50,063                      | 51,576                      | 53,108                      |
|                    | 1,674.03                    | 1,716.08                    | 1,764.65                    | 1,814.68                    | 1,862.53                    | 1,919.08                    | 1,977.08                    | 2,035.80                    |
|                    | 23.09                       | 23.67                       | 24.34                       | 25.03                       | 25.69                       | 26.47                       | 27.27                       | 28.08                       |
| Researcher 2 (6R2) |                             |                             |                             |                             |                             |                             |                             |                             |
| ,                  | 62,943                      | 65,610                      | 68,144                      | 70,621                      | 73,364                      | 76,277                      | 79,208                      |                             |
|                    | 2,412.80                    | 2,515.03                    | 2,612.18                    | 2,707.15                    | 2,812.28                    | 2,923.93                    | 3,036.30                    |                             |
|                    | 33.28                       | 34.69                       | 36.03                       | 37.34                       | 38.79                       | 40.33                       | 41.88                       |                             |